



#### **Bureau of Justice Statistics Reports**

Single copies are available at no charge from the National Criminal Justice Reference Service, Box 6000, Rockville, Md. 20850. Multiple copies are for sale by the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C.

#### **National Crime Survey:**

**Criminal Victimization in the United States** (annual):

Summary Findings of 1977-78 Changes in Crime and of Trends Since 1973, NCJ-61368

A Description of Trends from 1973 to 1977, NCJ-59898

1978 (final report), NCJ-66480

1977, NCJ-58725

1976. NCJ-49543

1975, NCJ-44593

1974, NCJ-39467

1973, NCJ-34732

The Cost of Negligence: Losses from Preventable Household Burglaries, NC.1-53527

intimate Victims: A Study of Violence Among Friends and Relatives, NCJ-62319

Crime and Seasonality, NCJ-64818 Criminal Victimization of New York State Residents, 1974-77, NCJ-66481 Criminal Victimization Surveys in 13

American cities (summary report, 1 vol.),

NCJ-18471

Boston, NCJ-34818 Buffalo, NCJ-34820

Cincinnati, NCJ-34819 Houston, NCJ-34821

Miami, NCJ-34822

Milwaukee, NCJ-34823

Minneapolis, NCJ-34824

Minneapolis, NCJ-34824 New Orleans, NCJ-34825 Oakland, NCJ-34826 Pittsburgh, NCJ-34827 San Diego, NCJ-34828 San Francisco, NCJ-34829 Washington, D.C., NCJ-34830 Public Attitudes About Crime (13 vols.): Boston, NCJ-46235

Buffalo, NCJ-46236 Cincinnati, NCJ-46237

Houston, NCJ-46238 Miami, NCJ-46239

Milwaukee, NCJ-46240 Minneapolis, NCJ-46241

New Orleans, NCJ-46242

Oakland, NCJ-46243 Pittsburgh, NCJ-46244

San Diego, NCJ-46245

San Francisco, NCJ-46246

Washington, D.C., NCJ-46247

Criminal Victimization Surveys in Chicago, Detroit, Los Angeles, New York, and **Philadelphia:** A Comparison of 1972 and 1974 Findings, NCJ-36360

Criminal Victimization Surveys in the Nation's Five Largest Cities: National Crime Panel Surveys in Chicago, Detroit, Los Angeles, New York, and Philadelphia, 1972, NCJ-16909

Criminal Victimization Surveys in Eight American Cities: A Comparison of 1971/72 and 1974/75 Findings-National Crime Surveys in Atlanta, Baltimore, Cleveland, Dallas, Denver, Newark, Portland, and St.

Louis, NCJ-36361 Crimes and Victims: A Report on the Dayton/ San Jose Pilot Survey of Victimization, NCJ-013314

Indicators of Crime and Criminal Justice: Quantitative Studies, NCJ-62349

### Applications of the National Crime Survey Victimization and Attitude Data: Public Opinion About Crime: The Attitudes

of Victims and Nonvictims in Selected Cities, NCJ-41336

Local Victim Surveys: A Review of the Issues, NCJ-39973

The Police and Public Opinion: An Analysis of Victimization and Attitude Data from 13 American Cities, NCJ-42018

An Introduction to the National Crime

Survey, NCJ-43732 Compensating Victims of Violent Crime: Potential Costs and Coverage of a National Program, NCJ-43387

Crime Against Persons In Urban, Suburban, and Rural Areas: A Comparative Analysis of Victimization Rates, NCJ-53551

Rape Victimization in 26 American Cities, NC.I-55878

Criminal Victimization in Urban Schools, NCJ-56396

#### **National Prisoner Statistics:**

Capital Punishment (annual):

1978, NCJ-59897

1979 advance report, NCJ-67705

Prisoners in State and Federal Institutions on December 31:

1978, NCJ-64671

1979 advance report, NCJ-66522

Census of State Correctional Facilities, 1974 advance report, NCJ-25642

Profile of State Prison Inmates: Sociodemographic Findings from the 1974 Survey of Inmates of State Correctional Facilities, NCJ-58257

Census of Prisoners in State Correctional Facilities, 1973, NCJ-34729

Census of Jails and Survey of Jail Inmates, 1978, preliminary report, NCJ-55172

Profile of Inmales of Local Jails: Sociodemographic Findings from the 1978 Survey of Inmates of Local Jails, NCJ-65412

The Nation's Jails: A report on the census of jails from the 1972 Survey of Inmates of Local Jails, NCJ-19067

Survey of Inmates of Local Jails, 1972, advance report, NCJ-13313

Uniform Parole Reports: Parole in the United States (annual): 1978, NCJ-58722

1976 and 1977, NCJ-49702 Characteristics of the Parole

Population, 1978, NCJ-66479
A National Survey of Parole-Related

Legislation Enacted During the 1979 Legislative Session, NCJ-64218

Children in Custody: Juvenile Detention and Correctional Facility Census

1977 advance report:

Census of Public Juvenile Facilities, NCJ-60967

Census of Frivate Juvenile Facilities, NCJ-60968

1975 (final report), NCJ-58139 1974, NCJ-57946

1973, NCJ-44777

1971, NCJ-13403

Myths and Realities About Crime: A Nontechnical Presentation of Selected Information from the National Prisoner Statistics Program and the National Crime Survey, NCJ-46249

State and Local Probation €3d Parole Systems, NCJ-41335

State and Local Prosecution and Civil Attorney Systems, NCJ-41334

National Survey of Court Organization:

1977 Supplement to State Judicial Systems, NCJ-40022

1975 Supplement to State Judicial Systems, NCJ-29433 1971 (full report), NCJ-11427

State Court Model Statistical Dictionary,

NCJ-62320

State Court Caseload Statistics: The State of the Art, NCJ-46934

Annual Report, 1975, NCJ-51885 Annual Report, 1976, NCJ-56599

A Cross-City Comparison of Felony Case Processing, NCJ-55171

Trends in Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System, 1971-77 (annual), NCJ-57463

**Expenditure and Employment Data for the** Criminal Justice System (annual) 1978 Summary Report, NCJ-66483 1978 final report, NCJ-66482 1977 final report, NCJ-53206

Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology: Terms and Definitions Proposed for Interstate and National Data Collection and Exchange, NCJ-36747

Criminal Justice Agencies in the U.S.:

Summary Report of the National Criminal Justice Agency List, NCJ-65560

Criminal Justice Agencies in Region

1: Conn., Maine, Mass., N.H., R.I., Vt., NCJ-17930

2: N.J., N.Y., NCJ-17931

3: Del., D.C., Md., Pa., Va., W.Va., NCJ-17932 4: Ala., Ga., Fla., Ky., Miss., N.C., S.C., Tenn.,

NCJ-17933

5: Ill., Ind., Mich., Minn., Ohio, Wis., NCJ-17934

6: Ark., La., N.Mex., Okla., Tex., NCJ-17935

7: Iowa, Kans., Mo., Nebr., NCJ-17936

8: Colo., Mont., N.Dak., S.Dak., Utah, Wyo., NCJ-17937

9: Ariz., Calif., Hawaii, Nev., NCJ-15151

10: Alaska, Idaho, Oreg., Wash., NCJ-17938

#### **Utilization of Criminal Justice Statistics** Project:

Sourcebook of Criminal Justice Statistics 1979 (annual), NCJ-59679

Public Opinion Regarding Crime, Criminal Justice, and Related Topics, NCJ-17419

New Directions in Processing of Juvenile Offenders: The Denver Model, NCJ-17420 Who Gets Detained? An Empirical Analysis

of the Pre-Adjudicatory Detention of Juveniles in Denver, NCJ-17417 Juvenile Dispositions: Social and Legal

Factors Related to the Processing of Denver Delinquency Cases, NCJ-17418
Offender-Based Transaction Statistics: New

Directions in Data Collection and Reporting. NCJ-29645

Sentencing of California Felony Offenders, NCJ-29646 The Judicial Processing of Assault and
Burglary Offenders in Selected California

Counties, NCJ-29644 Pre-Adjudicatory Detention in Three Juvenile

Courts, NCJ-34730 **Delinquency Dispositions:** An Empirical Analysis of Processing Decisions in Three Juvenile Courts, NCJ-34734

The Patterns and Distribution of Assault Incident Characteristics Among Social Areas, NCJ-40025

Patterns of Robbery Characteristics and Their Occurrence Among Social Areas, NCJ-40026 Crime-Specific Analysis:

The Characteristics of Burglary Incidents, NCJ-42093

An Empirical Examination of Burglary Offender Characteristics, NCJ-43131

An Empirical Examination of Burglary Offenders and Offense Characteristics. NCJ-42476

Sources of National Criminal Justice Statistics: An Annotated Bibliography, NCJ-45006

Federal Criminal Sentencing: Perspectives of Analysis and a Design for Research, NCJ-33683

Variations in Federal Criminal Sentences: A Statistical Assessment at the National Level, NCJ-33684

Federal Sentencing Patterns: A Study of

Geographical Variations, NCJ-33685

Predicting Sentences in Federal Courts: The Feasibility of a National Sentencing Policy, NCJ-33686



# State Court Model Statistical Dictionary

A joint effort of

Conference of State Court Administrators

and

National Center for State Courts

National Court Statistics Project 300 Newport Avenue Williamsburg, Virginia 23185

NCJ-62320, SD-C-7 July 1980

#### U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Bureau of Justice Statistics

Benjamin H. Renshaw Acting Director

Report of work performed by the National Court Statistics Project, National Center for State Courts

This project was supported by grant number 79-SS-AX-0010, awarded to the National Center for State Courts, Williamsburg, Virginia, by the Bureau of Justice Statistics, formerly the National Criminal Justice Information and Statistics Service, Law Enforcement Assistance Administration, U.S. Department of Justice, under the Cmnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended. The National Court Statistics Project is directed by Francis J. Taillefer for the National Center for State Courts and monitored by Sue A. Lindgren for BJS. Points of view or opinions stated in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice.

BJS authorizes any person to reproduce, publish, translate, or otherwise use all or any part of the copyrighted material in this publication, with the exception of those items indicating that they are copyrighted by or reprinted by permission of any source other than the National Center for State Courts.

Copyright 1980 by the National Center for State Courts

This State Court Model Statistical Dictionary has been produced by the National Center for State Courts (NCSC) and the Conference of State Court Administrators (COSCA) as part of a continuing effort to develop within the National Center a national data base of state court statistics, and to help state courts to collect more comprehensive, accurate statistics.

This dictionary identifies the need for uniform terminology and definitions in reporting state court caseloads, and presents a model reporting scheme for caseload inventory and manner of disposition that can be used as preferred terminology and meanings for nationwide comparison purposes. These model classification schemes have also been incorporated into the State Court Model Annual Report, a companion volume to this document.

The preparation of the dictionary has been supervised and greatly assisted by the National Court Statistics Project Committee of COSCA, chaired by James R. James from 1977 to 1979 and by Bert M. Montague since 1979. The committee members have given generously of their time, talent, and experience. The control exerted by COSCA through this committee, following a review and approval process, has been invaluable in enhancing the quality of this volume by providing guidance to project staff. The success of the joint NCSC/COSCA relationship underscores the need for, and benefits to be derived from, state judicial control over the design and development of systems that collect state court statistical information.

In addition to the committee, the entire COSCA membership has assisted in the review process that has been vital to the completion of this dictionary, and they will continue to be the crucial element in the production of high-qualtity statistics. The extent to which the caseload classification and counting structure suggested herein are adopted will determine the degree of comparability of state court caseload statistics for years to come. The suggested model reporting scheme will facilitate commonality in terms used and consistency in their application. Much of the present guesswork will be removed from state court statistical compilation, both for in-state reporting and national statistical series purposes.

On behalf of the National Court Statistics Project (NCSP) staff and the COSCA NCSP Committee, we wish to recognize and thank all the many individuals who have contributed to this model statistical dictionary.

Edward B. McConnell

Director

National Center for State Courts

There Au Towned

The Conference of State Court Administrators has given its support to the National Court Statistics Project, which will establish in the National Center for State Courts the capability of gathering, analyzing, and disseminating statistical information on each state court system in the nation.

The NCSP project has produced this court statistical dictionary to serve as a model reporting system for the compilation of caseload statistics that contain uniform classification categories for all caseload inventory and manner of disposition. This model should be viewed as a first effort—a working tool for states to try and to evaluate. Comments and contributions from the states are welcome. As states use this document, useful ideas can be identified for the improvement and expansion of the reporting scheme.

Future annual statistical reports to be published by the National Court Statistics Project will permit an ongoing assessment of the extent to which states have improved their data collection efforts. As state court statistics inprove, so will the validity of using and comparing caseload data among jurisdictions and among states. I recommend that court administrators everywhere carefully review this dictionary and make as much use as possible of the classification schemes, definitions, and reporting instructions that it contains.

James R James

James R. James, Chairman 1977-1979 NCSP Committee

Conference of State Court Administrators

Musty.

Bert M. Montague, Chairman 1979-

NCSP Committee

Conference of State Court Administrators

### CONFERENCE OF STATE COURT ADMINISTRATORS NATIONAL COURT STATISTICS PROJECT COMMITTEE

James R. James, Chairman (1977 to 1979) (member of dictionary subcommittee) Judicial Administrator of the Courts, Kansas

Bert M. Montague (1977- ),
Chairman (1979 )
(member of dictionary sub-committee)
Administrative Director, Administrative
Office of the Courts, North Carolina

Elizabeth D. Belshaw, Vice Chairman (1977 to 1979) State Court Administrator, Maine

Laurence C. Harmon, Vice Chairman (1979-State Court Administrator, Minnesota

Alexander F. Barbieri (1977- ) State Court Administrator, Pennsylvania

James E. Dunlevey (1977 to 1979) (member of dictionary set-committee) State Court Administrator, Nebraska

Roy O. Gulley (1978- )
(member of dictionary sub-committee)
Director, Administrative Office of the
Courts, Illinois

John F. Harkness, Jr. (1979 and 1980) State Court Administrator, Florida

C. R. Huie (1977 to 1979)
Executive Secretary, Judicial Department of Arkansas

Eugene J. Murret (1979- )
State Court Administrator, Louisiana

Arthur J. Simpson, Jr. (1978 and 1979) Acting Director, Administrative Office of the Courts, New Jersey

James D. Thomas (1979- )
State Court Administrator, Louisiana

Phillip B. Winberry (1977 and 1978) Administrator for the Courts, Washington

#### NATIONAL CENTER FOR STATE COURTS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chief Justice William S. Richardson, President, Supreme Court of Hawaii

Chief Judge Theodore R. Newman, Jr.
Vice-President
District of Columbia Court of Appeals

Presiding Judge Robert C. Broomfield Superior Court, Maricopa County, Arizona

Chief Judge Lawrence H. Cooke Court of Appeals of New York

Judge Mercedes F. Deiz Circuit Court of Oregon

Judge Roland J. Faricy Municipal Court of Ramsey County, Minnesota

Director: Edward B. McConnell

Chief Justice Joe R. Greenhill Supreme Court of Texas

Thief Justice Lawrence W. I'Anson, Supreme Court of Virginia

Judge Wilfred W. Nuernberger Separate Juvenile Court of Lancaster County, Nebraska

Judge Kaliste J. Saloom, Jr. City Court of Lafayette, Louisiana

Justice Joseph R. Weisberger Supreme Court of Rhode Island

Judge Robert A. Wenke Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California

#### NATIONAL COURT STATISTICS PROJECT STAFF

Lynn A. Jensen, Project Group Manager Francis J. Taillefer, Project Director Nora F. Blair, Staff Associate Mary Louise Clifford, Staff Associate Mary E. Elsner, Staff Associate Robert M. Simmonds, Staff Associate Betty Joyce White, Staff Associate Robert A. Zastany, Staff Associate

J. Candace Clifford, Design Specialist Regina D. Page, Secretary Brenda A. Williams, Secretary Mary A. Miller, Secretary Rita P. Hall, Word Processing Secretary Daryl Kotch, Word Processing Secretary Amy Rausch, Word Processing Secretary

Linguistics Consultant: Dr. James F. Harris, College of William and Mary

#### Dear Reader:

This is the first edition of the <u>State Court Model Statistical Dictionary</u>. The terms contained herein comprise a classification scheme for reporting court caseload inventory and manner of disposition, and are viewed as a logical first step in promoting comparable court statistics by the COSCA NCSP Committee that guides the National Court Statistics Project.

Future editions will expand the reporting scheme and will update and revise as necessary the definitions and reporting instructions contained in this first edition. We need your comments to make future editions as useful as possible. We also need some feedback from you as to the adequacy and utility of the terms and definitions in this edition for your current and planned information system and statistical activities.

To aid you in transmitting your opinions and recommendations to us, we have provided a self-mailing, postage-free "user response form" in the back of this edition. If this form has been used, or if you wish to comment in letter form, please write to:

Court Statistics Program Manager Bureau of Justice Statistics U.S. Department of Justice Washington, D.C. 20531

or

National Court Statistics Project National Center for State Courts 300 Newport Avenue Williamsburg, VA 23185

Your comments will be greatly appreciated.

### **Table of contents**

Preface	111
COSCA NCSP Committee, NCSC Board of Directors,	
NCSP staff	v
Introduction	1
Format	3
Contents	5
Suggested prototype for display of caseload inventory	
and manner of disposition	9
Entries	11
Foldout of prototypes for display of caseload	
inventory and manner of disposition	111
Bibliography	113
Index	115
User response form	131

### Introduction

The definitions provided in this dictionary for both court statistical and related terms represent an attempt to remove ambiguity from the usage of these terms, at least for statistical reporting purposes in state courts.

The need for this dictionary became apparent as the National Court Statistics Project (NCSP) staff attempted to compile the first (1975) annual report of state court caseload statistics. The data contained in both published and unpublished materials from the 50 states and the District of Columbia were analyzed with the intention of compiling national totals, but an immediate problem resulted from the multitude of terms being used by the states to report their caseloads. The need for both a State Court Model Annual Report and a State Court Model Statistical Dictionary of terms for court usage became obvious.

In preparing the model statistical dictionary, a choice had to be made between (1) defining terms broadly so that they encompassed the ways that most states are using them; or (2) choosing a specific definition that would be precise and most useful for statistical reporting purposes. Obviously, all the courts in every state could not be consulted to find out What each meant in using a particular term. The most viable alternative was for the Conference of State Court Administrators NCSP Committee to rely on its extensive experience and depth of knowledge in order to pick the terms and shape the definitions that would make possible uniform and comparable statistics for both intra- and interstate statistical reporting purposes. In tackling this difficult task, the staff first surveyed all the terms being used by the state court systems across the nation. From these the COSCA NCSP Committee chose the most suitable terms for broad statistical categories and subcategories, and developed a definition of each term for inclusion in the model statistical dictionary and in the model annual report. These terms and definitions are offered here as models or as preferred terminology and meanings for statistical reporting purposes.

In using this dictionary, courts that prefer to use a term defined herein to mean something else, or use some other term in its place, should indicate this with their statistics so that their data can be correctly classified in future national annual reports.

The scope of this first edition of the statistical dictionary is confined to the essential data elements for classifying court caseload inventory and manner of disposition. Even in these areas a much finer level of detail is already reported by some states and could be addressed in a later expansion of the classification schemes. Case categories such as felony and misdemeanor, for example, are further subdivided in many states into specific kinds of offenses, and the addition of such refinements may be appropriate after the current schemes have been tested.

There are other significant statistical terms that could be added to future editions of the dictionary. A scheme for reporting important events in case processing is an obvious example, and could be regarded as a necessary step in measuring caseload and in assessing the court resources needed to handle caseload. Event reporting would also provide useful information about the manner in which the defendant is handled and justice is dispensed.

Some states report sentencing data, trend data, time to process cases, and the like. These are significant subjects for statistical analysis. This edition does not address terminology for court workload other than caseload, but at some future date an accounting of the whole array of judicial responsibilities could prove very useful. An indication of reader interest in adding the data elements needed to provide all or any of these kinds of information to the dictionary would be very helpful.

It would be possible, although not particularly useful, to cross reference to the appropriate term in the classification schemes all the terms being used frequently in the annual reports of all the states. These terms are not now included in the body of this dictionary, but appear instead in the separate, unpublished annex to this dictionary, where they can be referenced for classification purposes. This annex is available on request from the National Court Statistics Project, National Center for State Courts, 300 Newport Avenue, Williamsburg, Virginia 23185.

Interested readers will find a great deal of useful related information in the second edition of the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, compiled by SEARCH Group, Inc., of Sacramento, California, under a grant from the Bureau of Justice Statistics in the U.S. Department of Justice. That dictionary is much more comprehensive in that it includes terminology for all the segments of the criminal justice system, and is not limited to statistical reporting terms. It includes in its court terminology the classification schemes contained in this model statistical dictionary, offering them as models for court usage.

Wherever possible, definitions from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u> have been used and cited within this dictionary. Both dictionaries can be obtained at no cost from the National Criminal Justice Reference Service, Box 6000, Rockville, Maryland 20850.

#### Format

The terms defined in the dictionary are in boldface type. When these terms appear within other entries in the dictionary, they also are in boldface whenever appropriate to indicate that the definition of that term will be found in its alphabetical position in the dictionary. This permits an already defined term to be used in other definitions without redefining the term.

Each entry in the dictionary will be arranged as follows, and will include part or all of the following segments:

- 1. Indication of kind of term:
  - # indicates a court statistical term.

A related, nonstatistical term has no symbol.

- 2. The term itself in boldface.
- 3. The definition of the term.
- 4. An instruction to see other, closely related terms.
- 5. Synonyms, if any.
- 6. Court statistical usage.
- 7. Annotation.

Two kinds of terms are defined, court statistical and related terms. Court statistical terms are words or phrases representing quantitive concepts or basic reporting units in court usage. They should be sufficiently clear and uniformly defined to be used in the collection and analysis of statistics within and among states. Related terms are those that are needed to clarify the definitions of the statistical terms.

Each statistical term is explained for court reporting purposes. It may have synonyms listed after the definition, as well as an annotation containing supplementary material that helps explain a term, a variant of a term, or a closely related term.

All statistical term entries as well as some related terms contain a subheading, court statistical usage, where instructions will be found that permit consistent and unambiguous usage of the term in data reporting systems. These instructions have been made complete for every court statistical term, so that it is not necessary to look elsewhere in the dictionary for reporting instructions. This repetition of instructions for terms in the same categories may seem redundant, but the assumption is that this dictionary will be used primarily by data suppliers (e.g., clerks) rather than for general reading.

A distinction in meaning is made in all dictionary entries when the terms "classify," "count," and "report" are used:

- 1. <u>Classify</u>: for statistical reporting purposes, an instruction to classify indicates where a term belongs in the model classification schemes.
- 2. <u>Count</u>: for statistical reporting purposes, an instruction to count indicates that a tally should be kept by the court for internal purposes and in order to report related statistics. (Count is also used as a noun in the general sense throughout this dictionary.)
- 3. Report: for statistical reporting purposes, an instruction to report indicates that the data being discussed should be published in the state's annual report and will be used for nationwide statistics.

Also included in the dictionary are cross-referenced terms that are not defined and are not in boldface. These terms are not synonyms. They are contained in the entries to terms that are defined, and these entries provide sufficient information to classify the undefined cross-referenced terms.

#### **Contents**

This first edition of the state court model statistical dictionary contains data terminology for reporting state court caseload statistics: a complete scheme for classifying court caseload inventory-beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases), and another scheme for displaying the manner of disposition of court cases. (Sample prototype tables for displaying caseload inventory and manner of disposition are located on pages 9 and 10, as well as on a foldout at page 111.)

In order to devise categories that are both inclusive and exclusive, the COSCA NCSP Committee chose caseload terminology that indicates the subject matter at issue in the case—that is, the nature of the question the court is asked to decide. There are, of course, other schema that could be followed, but subject matter provides a practical framework within which to compile caseloads that are comparable from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

The Committee also chose for caseload inventory purposes to count cases rather than defendants, because counting cases is consistent with the internal procedures of the courts. (A count of defendants should be kept, however, because manner of disposition statistics will indicate outcomes for defendants in criminal and traffic cases. A suggested prototype for displaying a defendant count in caseload inventory is shown on page 10.)

The classification scheme for **caseload** is as follows (complete caseload inventory for each case category should be reported under **beginning pending**, **filings**, **dispositions**, and **end pending**):

#### Appellate court case

Request to appeal

Civil case request to appeal (by subject matter of case; see civil case)

Criminal case request to appeal (by subject matter of case; see criminal case)

Postconviction remedy case request to appeal
Request to appeal of administrative agency case
Juvenile case request to appeal (by subject matter of

case; see juvenile case)
Sentence review only case

Appeal case

Civil case appeal (by subject matter of case)

Criminal case appeal (by subject matter of case)

Postconviction remedy case

Appeal of administrative agency case

Juvenile case appeal (by subject matter of case)

Original proceeding case

Original jurisdiction case

Disciplinary matter

Advisory opinion case

```
Trial court case
        Civil case
           Tort case
              Auto tort case
              Professional tort case
              Product liability tort case
              Other tort case
           Contract case
           Real property rights case
           Small claims case
           Domestic relations case
             Marriage dissolution case
             Support/custody case
              Adoption case
             Other domestic relations case
          Mental health case
          Estate case
             Probate/wills/intestate case
             Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case
             Other estate case
          Appeal case
             Appeal of administrative agency case
             Appeal of trial court case
          Extraordinary writ case
          Postconviction remedy case
          Other civil case
       Criminal case
          Felony case
          Misdemeanor case
          Preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only)
          Ordinance (non-traffic) violation case
          Appeal case
             Appeal of trial court case
          Extraordinary writ case
          Postconviction remedy case
          Sentence review only case
          Other criminal case
       Traffic case
          DWI/DUI case
          Other traffic violation case
```

Parking violation case
Juvenile case
Criminal-type offender case
Status offender case
Non-offender case
Other juvenile matters

The disposition of cases should be reported by case category in caseload inventory, but further information is needed. Terminology for reporting the manner of disposition was chosen to include the kinds of information that are useful for court management purposes, such as the procedural manner in which cases are disposed, the significant judicial decisions, and a tally of the outcomes for defendants in criminal cases and traffic cases. There should be a place for every kind of case termination.

The manner of disposition scheme for appellate court cases outlined below permits a count of the important ways of issuing appellate court decisions, with a case count to be reported under the types of decision in each category.

#### Manner of disposition, appellate court cases

Opinion

Affirmed

Modified

Reversed

Reversed and remanded

Remanded

Granted/denied

Memorandum decision

Affirmed

Modified

Reversed

Reversed and remanded

Remanded

Granted/denied

Order (decision without opinion)

Affirmed

Modified

Reversed

Reversed and remanded

Remanded

Granted/denied

Dismissed/withdrawn/settled

Transferred

Other manner of disposition

The distinction should be made in the manner of disposition of appellate cases, whenever possible, between cases that are civil or criminal.

In the following manner of disposition scheme for trial court cases, a case count should be reported under civil case manner of disposition. Criminal case manner of disposition and traffic case manner of disposition provide for a count of trials and a count of defendant dispositions (see the prototype on page 10).

Manner of disposition, trial court cases

Civil case manner of disposition

Jury trial

Non-jury trial

Uncontested/default

Dismissed/withdrawn/settled (before trial)

Transferred (before/during trial)

Arbitration

Other manner of disposition

Criminal case manner of disposition

Jury trial

Conviction

Guilty plea

Acquittal

Dismissed

Non-jury trial

Conviction

Guilty plea

Acquittal

Dismissed

Dismissed/nolle prosequi (before trial)

Bound over

Transferred (before/during trial)

Guilty plea (before trial)

Bail forfeiture

Other manner of disposition

Traffic case manner of disposition

Jury trial

Conviction

Acquittal

Non-jury trial

Conviction

Acquittal

Transferred (before/during trial)

Guilty plea (before trial)

Bail forfeiture

Dismissed/nolle prosequi (before trial)

Parking fine

Other manner of disposition

The scheme above provides for an accounting of the manner of disposition in all cases except juvenile. Because the handling of juvenile cases in the state trial courts is in a transition status, no manner of disposition scheme has been included. The aggregate reporting of juvenile caseload inventory as well as of defendant dispositions is all that is suggested at this time.

In order to display caseload inventory and manner of disposition statistics, a suggested prototype for appellate courts is displayed below. The prototype for trial courts is on the following page. For your convenience these same prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111 of this document.

#### Suggested prototype for display of caseload inventory and manner of disposition in appellate courts

## STATE NAME, COURT SAME Court of last resort or intermediate appellate court Number of court divisions, Number of judges Time period covered

Court caseload inventory	Beginning pending	Filed	Disposed	End pendin
Cases:				
Request to appeal case				
Civil case request to appeal	•			
Criminal case request to appeal	•			
Postconviction remedy case request to appeal	•			
Request to appeal of administrative agency case				
Juvenile case request to appeal				
Total	•			
Sentence review only case				
Total	•			
Appeal case				
Civil case appeal (mandatory)	•			
Requests to appeal granted that became civil appeals				
Criminal case appeal (mandatory)	•			
Requests to appeal granted that became criminal appeals				
Postconviction remedy case (mandatory)				
Requests to appeal granted that became postconviction remedy				
cases				
Appeal of administrative agency case (mandatory)	•			
Requests to appeal granted that became appeals of				
administrative agency cases				
Juvenile case appeal (mandatory)				
Requests to appeal granted that became juvenile case appeals				
Total	•			
Original proceeding case				
Original jurisdiction case				
Disciplinary matter				
Advisory opinion case				
Total	•			
	<del></del>		<del></del>	<del></del>
Total cases	_			

#### Manner of disposition, appellate court cases -- civil/criminal

Opinion [number of opinions]	00
Affirmed [number of cases]	00
Modified [number of cases]	00
Reversed [number of cases]	00
Reversed and remanded [number of cases]	00
Remanded [number of cases]	00
Granted/denied [number of cases]	00/00
Memorandum decision [number of memorandum decisions]	
Affirmed [number of cases]	กก
Modified [number of cases]	00
Reversed [number of cases]	00
Reversed and remanded [number of cases]	00
Remanded [number of cases]	00
Granted/denied [number of cases]	00/00
Order (decision without opinion) [number of orders]	00
Affirmed [number of cases]	00
Modified [number of cases]	00
Reversed [number of cases]	00/00
Reversed and remanded [number of cases]	00
Remanded [number of cases]	00
Granted/denied [number of cases]	00/00
Dismissed/withdrawn/settled [number of cases]	00
	00
	00
Artier manifer or drahostrion finisper or Cases   ***************	00

## Suggested prototype for display of caseload inventory and manner of disposition in trial courts

#### STATE HAME, COURT HAME Court of general jurisdiction or court of limited jurisdiction. Number of circuits or districts, Number of judges Time period covered

Tie	e period cover	red			
Court caseload inventory	Beginning pending	Filed cases	Disposed cases	Defendants	End pending
Civil case	P = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =				
Tort case					
Auto tort case					
Professional tort case					
Other tort case					
Contract case	,				
Real property rights case	ı			~-	
Small claims case	,				
Domestic relations case					
Support/custody case					
Adoption case	. *				
Other domestic relations case					
Mental health case				  	
Probate/wills/intestate case					
Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case					
Other estate case				40 MG	
Appeal case					
Appeal of trial court case	•				
Extraordinary writ case	,		*		
Postconviction remedy case					
Other eivil case	•				
Total civil	<u>.</u>				
Criminal case					
Felony case					
Misdemeanor case					
Preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only)	•				
Ordinance violation case					
Appeal case					
Extraordinary writ case					
Postconviction remedy case					
Sentence review only case					
Other criminal case	•				
Total criminal	•				
Traffic cose					
DWI/DUI	•				
Other traffic violation	•				
Parking violation	•				
Total traffic	•				
Juvenile case - Criminal-type offender case	_				
Status offender case					
Non-offender case					
Other juvenile matters	•				
Aller and the second of the se	•				
Total juvenile	•				
Grand total	•				
Manner of di	sposition, tri	al court cases			
Civil case manner of disposition Criminal manner	of diapositio	n	Traffic many	er of disposition	
Jury trial [cases] Jury trial [	cases]			l [cases]	
Non-jury trial [cases] Convictio		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Conv1	tion [defendants]	
Uncontested/default [cases] Guilty		*************		tol [defendants]	
			Convi	trial (defendants tion [defendants]	
Arbitration [cases]	al [cases]		Acqui	tal [defendants]	
Other manner of disposition [cases] Conviction	n [defendants]		Transfer	ed [defendents] .	
Guilty	plea		Guilty pl	ea [defendants]	
		,	Bail for	eiture [defendan	<b>8</b> ]
		defendante l	Darbies de	/nolle prosequi ines [defendants	gerengents;
Bound over f	defendantal	defendants]		ner of disposition	
			**************************************	or grabouter	146-4
Guilty pleas	[defendants]				
Bail forfeit	ure (defendant	s]			
Other manner	of disposition	n [defendants]			

#### **Entries**

ABATEMENT BY DEATH OF DEFENDANT see other manner of disposition, criminal case

ABSCONDED

see other manner of disposition, criminal case

# ACQUITTAL A judgment of a court, based on the verdict of either a jury or a judicial officer, that the defendant is not guilty of any offense(s) of which he has been charged.

#### Court statistical usage:

- Classify as a criminal case manner of disposition (trial courts) as a subheading under either jury trial and non-jury trial.
- Classify as a traffic case manner of disposition (trial courts) as a subheading under either jury trial and non-jury trial.
- Acquittals should indicate a count of defendants.
- Dismissal after trial begins should be reported as a sub-category under acquittal.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- **ACTION** (court) The judicial remedy for the enforcement or protection of a right, the redress or prevention of a wrong, or the punishment of a public offense.

Synonym: court case

#### Court statistical usage:

- Count and report all court cases by the subject matter at issue in the case.
- See appellate court case and trial court case.

Annotation: A completed action results in a judgment.

ACTION AT LAW see law case

ACTIVE CALENDAR see calendar

ADJUDICATION WITHHELD see conviction

ADMINISTRATION OF ESTATES see probate/wills/intestate case

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY A non-judicial unit of government that is charged with overseeing the implementation, execution, and administration of particular legislation.

#### Court statistical usage:

- Decisions of a judicial nature rendered by an administrative agency after a hearing on the matter may be appealed in the state courts.
- See appeal of administrative agency case.

Annotation: The following are examples of administrative agencies: workmen's compensation boards, licensing boards, zoning boards, public utility commissions, environmental protection agencies, tax assessment councils, rent control boards, disciplinary review boards of various corrections agencies, parole boards.

# ADOPTION CASE A subcategory of domestic relations case that includes cases involving a request for the establishment of a new, permanent relationship of parent and child between persons not having that relationship naturally.

#### Court statistical usage:

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under domestic relations case. as follows:
  - Marriage dissolution case
  - Support/custody case
  - Adoption case
  - Other domestic relations case
- If adoptions are handled by a probate court, they should be reported as adoption cases, separate from estate cases, so they can be included in nationwide domestic relations caseload inventory.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of adoption cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The result of a granted adoption action is usually to take a person formally and permanently into one's family and legally confer on him the rights, privileges, and duties of a child or heir.

ADVISORY JURY see jury trial

# ADVISORY OPINION CASE A subcategory of original proceeding case that includes cases in which a government organization or a public official, not a litigant, asks the appellate judges to render an opinion on some legal question.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in appellate court caseload inventory as a subcategory under original proceeding case, as follows:
  - Original jurisdiction case
  - 9 Disciplinary matter
  - Advisory opinion case
- Report in caseload inventory as **dispositions** both those requests for **advisory opinions** that are **granted** and those requests that are **denied** by the appellate judges. Indicate the number of requests granted and denied under **manner of disposition**, **appellate court case**.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The category advisory opinion case includes two types of cases: In some states a government official or body, typically a governor or legislature, can request the state court of last resort justices to give their opinion on a legal question. Also in some states the court of last resort will entertain requests, called certified questions, from federal courts to answer legal issues involving state law pending before the federal court. Although certified questions may not be technically advisory opinions, filed, disposed, and pending cases should be reported separately for interstate comparison purposes.

# AFFIRMED A decision by an appellate court that sustains the judgment of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court.

- Indicate the kind of appellate decision under each of the following categories of manner of disposition, appellate court case, as appropriate:
  - Opinion
  - Memorandum decision
  - Order

- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - · Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - Granted/denied
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: An appellate court can either affirm, reverse, or modify the trial court or administrative agency judgment or intermediate appellate court decision, or portions thereof. It can also remand the case back to the trial court for further action.

The affirmance of a judgment, decree, or order declares that it is valid and right, and must stand as rendered.

Because they require no further action by the court or agency rendering judgment, decisions that "affirm and modify" or "affirm in part, modify in part" should be classified as affirmed.

Because they may require further action by the court or agency rendering judgment, decisions that "affirm in part, reverse in part" should be classified as reversed.

AFFIRMED AND MODIFIED see affirmed

AFFIRMED AND REMANDED see remanded

AFFIRMED IN PART, REVERSED IN PART see reversed

# AGE OF PENDING CASELOAD (appellate courts) For statistical reporting purposes, a frequency count of the number of cases falling into each of a specified set of time intervals, separated according to the processing of specific events (see status of pending caseload); the inclusion of a case in a given time interval is determined by the age of that case from its date of filing.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report age of pending caseload data at the end of a reporting period according to a scale such as the following, which is used in the State Court Model Annual Report:

- Awaiting court reporter's Cases pending 0 to 60 days.
   transcript Cases pending 61 to 120 days.
   Awaiting appellant's brief (Cases pending over 120 days.
- Awaiting respondent's brief
- Ready for oral argument or Cases pending 0 to 90 days.
   Submission Cases pending 91 to 180 days.
   Under advisement Cases pending over 180 days.

Annotation: To provide maximum flexibility for court management purposes, courts should calculate the actual number of days a case is pending between various steps in case processing. The categories recommended here from the <a href="State Court Model Annual Report">State Court</a> Model Annual Report are intended to permit comparability of data for nationwide statistics.

# AGE OF PENDING CASELOAD (trial courts) For statistical reporting purposes, a frequency count of the number of cases falling into each of a specified set of time intervals; the inclusion of a case in a given time interval is determined by the age of that case from its date of filing.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report age of pending caseload data at the end of a reporting period according to a scale such as the following, which is used in the <u>State Court Model Annual Report</u>:

Cases pending 0 to 90 days.

Cases pending 91 days to 180 days.

Cases pending 181 days to 360 days.

Cases pending 361 days to 720 days.

Cases pending over 720 days.

- Court rules regulating the time that elapses before a defendant must be brought to trial will require that the 0-to-90-day segment of the above scale be separated into shorter segments for criminal cases.
- Cases that run for periods of years, such as guardianships, conservatorships, and trusteeships, should be reported separately in age of pending caseload data because they would skew the totals. When they are subtracted, an explanation should accompany the statistics so that the reader will know whether pending estate case statistics differ from total pending cases in caseload inventory.

Annotation: To provide maximum flexibility for court management purposes, courts should calculate the actual number of days a case is pending between various steps in case processing. The scale recommended here from the State Court Model Annual Report is intended to permit comparability of data for nationwide statistics.

AGENCY APPEAL

see appeal of administrative agency case

ALCOHOL, ALCOHOLICS
see DWI/DUI case
mental health case

ALIENATION OF AFFECTION see other tort case

ALIMONY

see support/custody case other domestic relations case

ANNULMENT

see marriage dissolution case

# APPEAL CASE (appellate court) A case category in a court having appellate jurisdiction in which a notice of appeal is filed to initiate the review of a judgment or decision of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Appeal case is a subcategory of the larger classification, appellate court case. It requests direct review of the judgment of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court.
- Appeal cases should identify the subject matter at issue in the original case.
- In appellate court caseload inventory use the following classification scheme for appeals pending, filed, and disposed:
  - Civil case appeal

Tort case appeal

Contract case appeal

Real property rights case appeal

Small claims case appeal

Domestic relations case appeal

Mental health case appeal

Estate case appeal

Other civil case appeal

• Criminal case appeal

Felony case appeal

Misdemeanor case appeal

Ordinance violation case appeal

Traffic case appeal

Other criminal case appeal

• Postconviction remedy case (mandatory)

- Appeal of administrative agency case
- Juvenile case appeal
- For statistical reporting purposes, the filing of a notice of appeal in an appellate court should be considered the beginning of an appeal case—the unit being counted. (See unit of count.) If the reviewing court uses some other event, such as filing of record, to determine the number of appeals, it should explain that it does so.
- If the notice of appeal in an appellate court case is filed in the trial court, do not count an appellate case until the notice is also docketed in the appellate court.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of appeals at the appellate level should be reported as indicated under manner of disposition, appellate court case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: In appellate courts appeals consist of (1) cases falling within the court's mandatory jurisdiction, and (2) cases falling within the court's discretionary jurisdiction (when a request to appeal has been granted).

Some appellate courts screen cases to ensure that the appellant is correct in claiming that the case falls within the mandatory jurisdiction of the court. These screening procedures may be similar to the procedures used to rule on requests to appeal. Nevertheless, these mandatory jurisdiction cases are appeals; the court should explain this practice and should indicate the number of cases it has ruled to be outside the mandatory jurisdiction. The disposition of these mandatory cases should be reported under dismissed/withdrawn/settled.

\* APPEAL CASE (trial court) A case category in a court having incidental appellate jurisdiction in which a notice of appeal or a complaint is filed to initiate the review of a judgment of a trial court or an administrative agency.

- Appeal case is a subcategory of the larger classification, trial court case. It requests direct review of the judgment of a trial court or an administrative agency.
- Appeal cases should identify the subject matter at issue in the original case.

- In trial court caseload inventory use the following classification for appeals pending, filed, and disposed:
  - Civil case appeal

Appeal of administrative agency case Appeal of trial court case

• Criminal case appeal

Appeal of trial court case

- For statistical reporting purposes, the filing in a trial court having incidental appellate jurisdiction of a notice of appeal or of a complaint should be considered the beginning of an appeal case—the unit being counted. (See unit of count.) If the reviewing court uses some other event, such as filing of record, to determine the number of appeals, it should explain that it does so.
- If the notice of appeal in an appellate court case is filed in the trial court, do not count an appeal case in the trial court.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of appeals at the trial court level should be reported as indicated under manner of disposition, trial court case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # APPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY CASE (appellate courts) An appeal case in which a court having appellate jurisdiction reviews the decision of an administrative agency. (See appeal case.)

- Appeal of administrative agency case is a subcategory of appeal cases. Classify appeals of administrative agency cases separately from criminal appeals, civil appeals, and juvenile appeals. (Do not report as cases administrative matters that do not require adjudication. These matters are properly part of workload, not caseload.)
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of appeals of administrative agency cases heard in appellate courts should be reported in the appropriate category under manner of disposition, appellate court case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The decision of the administrative agency, generally of a quasi-judicial nature, is handed down in a hearing held on the matter.

The following are examples of state administrative agencies, the decisions of which can be appealed: workmen's compensation boards, licensing boards, zoning boards, public utility commissions, environmental protection agencies, tax assessment councils, rent control boards, disciplinary review boards of various corrections agencies, parole boards.

# APPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY CASE (trial courts) An appeal case in which a court having incidental appellate jurisdiction reviews the decision of an administrative agency. (See appeal case, incidental appellate jurisdiction.)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report appeals heard in trial courts as follows:
  - Appeal of administrative agency case
  - Appeal of trial court case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of appeals of administrative agency cases heard in trial courts should be reported in the appropriate category in the manner of disposition, trial court case classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: State statutes determine whether appeals of administrative agency cases are heard in **trial courts** or in appellate courts.

# APPEAL OF TRIAL COURT CASE (heard in a trial court) An appeal case in which a trial court, in those states where statutes give those courts that authority, reviews the judgment of another trial court. (See appeal case, incidental appellate jurisdiction.)

- Appeal case is a subcategory of the broad classifications civil case and criminal case in trial court caseload inventory.
- Distinguish between civil case appeals and criminal case appeals.
- Report civil case appeals heard in trial courts as follows:
  - Appeal of administrative agency case
  - Appeal of trial court case
- Report criminal case appeals heard in trial courts as fol-
  - Appeal of trial court case

- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of appeals of trial court cases heard in trial courts should be reported in the appropriate category in the manner of disposition, trial court case classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Generally appeals of trial court cases are appeals from limited or special jurisdiction courts heard in general jurisdiction courts. In a very few states, however, appeals are heard in limited jurisdiction courts, or in-house appeals of trial court cases are heard in the same trial court.

APPEAL OF RIGHT/DISCRETIONARY REVIEW For statistical reporting purposes, the distinction between those appeals that an appellate court is required to hear (appeal of right), and those in which the court decides whether to grant the petition requesting that an appeal be heard (discretionary review).

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- For statistical reporting purposes, identification of the mandatory and discretionary jurisdiction of the appellate court(s) is important if caseloads are to be compared among states.

Annotation: Practice varies from state to state, but the functional distinction between mandatory and discretionary review is blurred. The decisional processes are not significantly different in that the material examined by the judges is much the same. The internal appellate process for deciding whether an appeal of right has sufficient merit to receive a full hearing and a written opinion does not differ greatly from the discretionary decision as to whether to grant or deny a petition for appeal. Both situations require the examination of briefs (the petition for appeal includes essentially the same information) and record, and an initial decision by the court as to whether there is any arguable error or possibility of injustice. In each situation, a decision is rendered on the merits.

# APPELLATE COURT A court, the primary function of which is to review judgments of trial courts and administrative agencies (or in the case of a court of last resort, also to review decisions of intermediate appellate courts).

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify courts of last resort and intermediate appellate courts as appellate courts.

Annotation: In some states trial courts are given authority to review judgments of other trial courts or of administrative agencies. These courts have incidental appellate jurisdiction, but are not appellate courts.

# APPELLATE COURT CASE A major classification category for caseload in courts of last resort and intermediate appellate courts that includes any appeal, request to appeal, original proceeding, or sentence review only filed in an appellate court. (See appeal case, request to appeal case, original proceeding case, sentence review only case.)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify appellate court caseload inventory according to the subject matter at issue in the original case, using the following subcategories:
  - Request to appeal

Civil case request to appeal
Criminal case request to appeal
Postconviction remedy case request to appeal
Request to appeal of administrative agency case
Juvenile case request to appeal

- Sentence review only case
- Appeal case

Civil case appeal
Criminal case appeal
Postconviction remedy case
Appeal of administrative agency case
Juvenile case appeal

- Original proceeding case
  Original jurisdiction case
  Disciplinary matter
  Advisory opinion case
- The notice of appeal filed in the appellate court is the unit being counted in appeal cases, and the petition is the unit being counted in request to appeal cases, sentence review only cases, and original proceeding cases.
- Other matters such as motions should not be reported as appellate cases, but may be identified separately as part of court caseflow.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of appellate court cases should be reported in the appropriate category under manner of disposition, appellate court case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

APPELLATE COURT CASELOAD INVENTORY
see court caseload inventory
appellate court case

APPLICATION FOR APPEAL/REVIEW see request to appeal case

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL see request to appeal case

# ARBITRATION For statistical reporting purposes, a category for reporting the manner of disposition of a civil case that is submitted to the judgment of an impartial party appointed by the court rather than decided through regular court process.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in civil cases.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- If a case is filed for judicial action after an arbitration hearing, a new filing should be counted. (See **reopened** case.)

<u>Annotation</u>: Arbitration is made mandatory by statute in some states.

AUTOMOBILE NEGLIGENCE see auto tort case

# AUTO TORT CASE A subcategory of tort case that includes cases resulting from personal injury, property damage, or wrongful death arising out of a party's alleged negligent operation of a motor vehicle.

Synonym: motor vehicle tort, automobile negligence

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under tort case as follows:
  - Auto tort case
  - Professional tort case
  - Product liability tort case
  - Other tort case

- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of auto tort cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Vehicles involved in auto tort cases include autos, trucks, buses, vans, motorcycles, mopeds, etc., but not vehicles being used for air or water transportation. The latter should be classified under other tort.

"Negligent operation" of a motor vehicle can be either careless or deliberate.

# AWAITING APPELLANT'S BRIEF For statistical reporting purposes, the status of the pending caseload when the court reporter's transcript has been filed, but the attorney for the appellant has not filed his brief with the clerk of the appellate court.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- In reporting appellate court status of pending caseload data, the following points in case processing should be indicated:
  - e Awaiting court reporter's transcript
  - Awaiting appellant's brief
  - Awaiting respondent's brief
  - Ready for oral argument or submission
  - e Under advisement
- See age of pending caseload (appellate courts) for a suggested time scale for measuring processing time.
- # AWAITING COURT REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT For statistical reporting purposes, the status of the pending caseload when the notice of appeal has been filed, but the court reporter's transcript of the trial proceedings has not been filed with the court clerk.

- In reporting appellate court status of pending caseload data, the following points in case processing should be indicated:
  - Awaiting court reporter's transcript
  - Awaiting appellant's brief
  - e Awaiting respondent's brief
  - Ready for oral argument or submission
  - Under advisement
- See age of pending caseload (appellate courts) for a suggested time scale for measuring processing time.

# AWAITING RESPONDENT'S BRIEF For statistical reporting purposes, the status of the pending caseload when the appellant's brief has been filed, but the attorney for the respondent has not filed his brief with the clerk of the appellate court.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- In reporting appellate court status of pending caseload data, the following points in case processing should be indicated:
  - Awaiting court reporter's transcript
  - Awaiting appellant's brief
  - Awaiting respondent's brief
  - Ready for oral argument or submission
  - Under advisement
- See age of pending caseload (appellate courts) for a suggested time scale for measuring processing time.
- # BAIL FORFEITURE For statistical reporting purposes, a manner of disposition classification for minor criminal cases (minor misdemeanors and ordinance violations) and for traffic cases in which a defendant's failure to appear in court causes the money or property deposited to secure release on bail not to be returned to the defendant.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in trial courts as a criminal case manner of disposition or a traffic case manner of disposition.
- Bail forfeiture should indicate a count of defendants.
- Do not include under bail forfeiture any cases disposed by voluntary payment of fines. These should be reported as guilty pleas, except for parking violations cases, the disposition of which should be reported as parking fines.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: In many states, bail forfeiture as defined here is the equivalent of "guilty plea by waiver."

Bail or bond may be posted to secure release in other kinds of criminal cases, but in those cases the defendant who "skips bail" is regarded as a fugitive, and the case will be reopened if he can be found. (See other manner of disposition, criminal case.) In a minor criminal case or traffic case the forfeiture of bail is regarded as the equivalent of payment of fine, and the case is considered permanently disposed.

#### BASTARDY

see other domestic relations case

# BEGINNING PENDING. (cases) For statistical reporting purposes, the number of cases awaiting disposition in a particular court at the beginning of a reporting period.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Report caseload inventory statistics in each case category for a reporting period as beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases). (See court caseload inventory.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

BENCH TRIAL see non-jury trial

BIND OVER see bound over

# BOUND OVER For statistical reporting purposes, the manner of disposition category for preliminary hearings held in limited jurisdiction courts when the defendant is removed to a general jurisdiction court for trial. (See preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only) and probable cause.)

Court Statistical Usage:

- When probable cause is found in a preliminary hearing held in a court other than that in which the defendant will be tried, the binding over of the defendant to the general jurisdiction court is a disposition in the limited jurisdiction court.
- Bound over should indicate a count of defendants.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

BREACH OF CONTRACT see contract case

CALENDAR A list of cases that are scheduled to be heard by a court.

Court Statistical Usage:

- All cases that are on the active court calendar should be reported in **court caseload** statistics.

Annotation: Court calendars may be for various periods of time--a court term, a week, a day. There may also be special calendars for particular proceedings such as hearings or arguments.

CASE

see court case

CASEFLOW

see court caseflow

CASELOAD

see court caseload

CASELOAD INVENTORY

see court caseload inventory

CERTIFIED QUESTION

see advisory opinion case

CERTIFIED TO AN ADULT COURT

see criminal-type offender case

CERTIORARI, WRIT OF

see request to appeal case writ

CHANCERY

see equity

CHANGE OF VENUE The movement of a case from one court to another court that has the same jurisdictional authority but is in a different geographic location. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary</u> of Criminal Justice Data Terminology, second edition)

Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a manner of disposition under transferred.

<u>Annotation</u>: An example of a change of venue is a case that is transferred from a court in one city, county, or district to a court in a different city, county, or district within a given state. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

CHARGING DOCUMENT

see complaint, criminal complaint, traffic filing information indictment unit of count

CHILD ABUSE, ABANDONMENT

see non-offender case

CHILD BEYOND CONTROL
see status offender case

CHILD IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (CHINS, CINS) see status offender case

CHILD MARRIAGE see other juvenile matter

CHINS, CINS, PINS, JINS, MINS see status offender case

# CIVIL CASE A broad classification category for trial court caseload that includes cases requesting the enforcement or protection of a right, or the redress or prevention of a wrong.

Synonym: civil action

Court Statistical Usage:

- The other broad trial court case classifications are criminal case, traffic case, and juvenile case.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of civil cases according to the subject matter at issue, using the following categories:
  - Tort case

Auto tort case Professional tort case Product liability tort case Other tort case

- Contract case
- Real property rights case
- Small claims case
- Domestic relations case
   Marriage dissolution case
   Support/custody case
   Adoption case

Other domestic relations case

- Mental health case
- Estate case

Probate/wills/intestate case Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case Other estate case

• Appeal case

Appeal of administrative agency case Appeal of trial court case

- Extraordinary writ case
- Postconviction remedy case
- Other civil case
- The complaint or petition that begins an action is the unit being counted in each civil case. (See unit of count.)

- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of civil cases should be reported in the appropriate category under civil case manner of disposition.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Civil cases are concerned with private rights while criminal cases are concerned with public wrongs.

# CIVIL CASE APPEAL (appellate court) A case filed in a court having appellate jurisdiction to review the judgment of a trial court or the decision of an intermediate appellate court in a civil case.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Civil case appeal is a subcategory of appeal case in appealate court caseload. In reporting the caseload inventory of civil case appeals, identify the subject matter at issue in the original case, using the following subcategories:
  - Tort case appeal (see tort case)
  - Contract case appeal (see contract case)
  - Real property rights case appeal (see real property rights case)
  - Small claims case appeal (see small claims case)
  - Domestic relations case appeal (see **domestic relations** case)
  - Mental health case appeal (see mental health case)
  - Estate case appeal (see estate case)
- Do not include juvenile case appeals in this category (see juvenile case appeal).
- Do not include appeals of administrative agency cases in this category (see appeal of administrative agency case).
- Do not include requests to appeal in this category (see request to appeal).
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of civil case appeals should be reported in the appropriate category under manner of disposition, appellate court case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: In many states appeals in all or certain of the above case categories are heard in trial courts rather than in appellate courts. (See appeal of trial court case.)

# CIVIL CASE MANNER OF DISPOSITION The manner in which a civil case pending before a trial court is disposed.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report total civil case dispositions in caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- Report the manner of disposition of civil cases in trial courts as follows:
  - Jury trial
  - Non-jury trial
  - Uncontested/default
  - Dismissed/withdrawn/settled (before trial)
  - Transferred (before/during trial)
  - Arbitration
  - Other manner of disposition
- The statistics in the subcategories under civil case manner of disposition should indicate a count of cases, not of defendants.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

**CLATMANT** 

see plaintiff

CO-DEFENDANT

see defendant

COMPLAINANT

see plaintiff

COMMON LAW A system of jurisprudence that is based upon principles of justice derived from old and accepted legal customs, usages, precedents, and court judgments recognizing, affirming, and enforcing such precedents, rather than upon constitutional mandates or legislative enactments.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify cases by the subject matter at issue in the case rather than by the kind of remedy sought.

Annotation: Some states report law cases, but comparable interstate caseload cannot be compiled without knowing the subject matter of the cases. (See law case.)

Actions at law (based on common law) and suits in equity are now merged in most states and are heard in trial courts.

Common law is invalid if it conflicts with federal or state constitutions or statutes.

# COMMITMENT, COMMITMENT REVIEW see mental health case

COMPLAINT, CIVIL For statistical reporting purposes, the initial written pleading on the part of the plaintiff in a civil case.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report the type of case initiated by the complaint.
- A petition or a civil complaint that begins an action is the unit of count for civil cases in most trial courts.
- Statistical reports should specify how cases are being counted. (See unit of count.)

Annotation: The purpose of a civil complaint is to inform the **defendant** of the facts and legal grounds upon which the plaintiff bases his claim for legal redress and to request the **court** to act thereon.

COMPLAINT, CRIMINAL For statistical reporting purposes, a formal written document submitted to a court by a prosecutor, law enforcement officer, or other person, alleging that a specified person(s) has committed a specific offense(s), and requesting prosecution. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report the type of case initiated by the complaint. (See criminal case, juvenile case.)
- Count the original charging document filed in criminal cases and in juvenile cases of a criminal nature in **trial courts**. The charging document may include multiple **defendants**. If it does, also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in **caseload** inventory. (See prototype on page 111.)
- Statistical reports should specify how cases are being counted. (See **unit of count**.)

Annotation: A complaint is a type of charging document and initiates a criminal case. Most jurisdictions call the charging document filed in a misdemeanor case or at the first step of a felony case a "complaint," and the document filed to initiate trial proceedings at the second step of a felony case an "information," . . . . In some jurisdictions the document filed to bind over a defendant until a grand jury decides whether or not to issue an indictment is also called a "complaint." (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

For internal purposes, a record of the date a trial begins or a defendant is bound over is important in calculating age of pending caseload data.

**COMPLAINT, TRAFFIC** For statistical reporting purposes, a formal written document alleging that a specific person has committed a specific traffic offense, and requesting prosecution.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report the type of case initiated by the complaint. (See traffic case.)
- Count the original charging document filed in traffic cases, with the day the court receives the charging document as the beginning of the case. If there is more than one defendant on the charging document, also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.
- Statistical reports should specify how cases are being counted. (See unit of count).

Annotation: A traffic complaint is usually a uniform traffic citation.

**CONCURRENT JURISDICTION** Jurisdiction conferred upon two or more **courts** over the same class of **cases** or matters.

#### CONDEMNATION

see real property rights case

#### CONSERVATOR, CONSERVATORSHIP

see guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case

CONSOLIDATED CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a case in a trial court in which two or more defendants named in separate filing documents (charging documents in criminal or traffic cases; petitions or complaints in civil cases) are tried together, or where a given defendant is tried on matters contained in two or more filing documents; a case in an appellate court where two or more appeals are decided together.

- In reporting trial court dispositions in caseload inventory, all the cases except the one into which the cases were consolidated for trial should be reported as disposed at the time of consolidation and reported under other manner of disposition. When that case too has been decided, it should be reported as disposed.
- In reporting trial court case manner of disposition, the consolidated case will account for only one trial, but an accounting of what happened to the defendants in criminal or traffic cases will appear in the appropriate subcategories under trial (conviction, acquittal). (See prototype on page 111.)

- In reporting appellate court dispositions in caseload inventory, all the cases except the one into which the cases were consolidated for opinion should be reported as disposed at the time of consolidation and reported under other manner of disposition, appellate cases. When that case too has been decided, it should be reported as disposed.
- In reporting appellate court case manner of disposition, the consolidated case will account for only one opinion, memorandum decision, or order, and the type of decision in the consolidated case will appear in the appropriate subcategory (affirmed, modified, reversed, reversed and remanded, remanded). (See prototype on page 111.)

# CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUE see original jurisdiction case

# CONTRACT CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases involving a dispute over a promissory agreement between two or more individuals or organizations.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Contract case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case. See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Contract cases include those arising under the Uniform Commercial Code.
- For statistical purposes, contract cases involving real property rights should be reported under real property rights case.
- Breach of contract involving negligence should be reported under tort case.
- The determination of when a contract case should be reported as a real property rights case or as a tort case will have to be made according to local law at the time the case is **filed**.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of a contract case should be reported under the appropriate subcategory in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: A contract is not the basis for a case until a dispute over its terms or their fulfillment leads to the initiation of a civil **action** in court.

The term contract is also used for the written document, if any, which contains the terms and conditions of the agreement and which serves as a legal proof of the agreement. A contract does not require court approval or action.

Contract disputes may involve either (1) promissory agreements between two or more competent adults or organizations that create, modify, or terminate a legal relation (contract); or (2) recovery of a certain specific sum of money or a sum that can readily be reduced to a certainty, as provided by common law, where there is only an implied contract to pay it (debt),

CONTRIBUTING TO DELINQUENCY see criminal case

CONTRIBUTING TO DEPENDENCY AND NEGLECT see criminal case

# CONVICTION A judgment of a court, based either on the verdict of a jury or the decision of a judicial officer or on the guilty plea of the defendant, that the defendant is guilty of the offense(s) (or a lesser included offense) of which he has been charged. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice</u> Data Terminology, second edition)

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a criminal case manner of disposition (trial courts) as a subheading under both jury trial and non-jury trial.
- Classify as a traffic case manner of disposition (trial courts) as a subheading under both jury trial and non-jury trial.
- Conviction should indicate a count of defendants.
- "Adjudication withheld" after trial begins and "sentence withheld" after trial begins should be reported as a **conviction**.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

CORAM NOBIS

1 13

see extraordinary writ case

CORPORATE TRUSTS
see other probate case

**COURT** A unit of the judicial branch of government, authorized or established by constitution or statute, which has the legal authority to decide **cases** or controversies brought before it.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Do not use court as a statistical term for **caseload inventory** purposes without identifying the particular court involved and its subject matter jurisdiction.

Annotation: In order to compare caseload, the subject matter jurisdiction of the courts being compared must be the same.

The state courts may be arranged under two main classifications:

1. appellate courts

court(s) of last resort
intermediate appellate court(s)

2. trial courts

court(s) of general jurisdiction
court(s) of limited or special jurisdiction

Because the names of the courts at the various levels vary widely from state to state, caseload compilation is simplified when the **subject matter jurisdiction** of each court is identified.

**COURT CASE** For reporting purposes, a statistical construct of **court** activity that is used to monitor court operations and aid in management decisions.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Do not use court case as a statistical term in reporting caseload. Cases should be identified according to the subject matter at issue in the case. (See appellate court case and trial court case).

Annotation: The construct of a court case is the complete sequence of events or court proceedings between the initial filing of a case and its disposition.

In compiling caseload statistics for comparison purposes, it is essential to know what constitutes a case in each jurisdiction and what unit of count is being used. If the point of counting or the units of count differ from state to state, caseload cannot be compared. (See unit of count.)

COURT CASEFLOW The process by which cases move through the court from filing until court jurisdiction is terminated.

- Do not use as a synonym for court caseload or workload.
- Although this dictionary has not yet addressed any scheme for reporting court caseflow, each state will need to plan an appropriate format for reporting the steps in case processing that are significant for court management purposes.

# COURT CASELCAD The total number of cases that a court reports in any reporting period, arranged as efficiently as possible for management purposes.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- In each reporting period, report complete statistics for each case category to display caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- Case-related matters such as hearings and motions should not be counted as **caseload** statistics, but rather as steps in **caseflow**.

Annotation: Caseload is not a synonym for workload, which includes all other matters in addition to caseload that must be attended to by the court.

# COURT CASELOAD INVENTORY For statistical reporting purposes, four uniform caseload counts that should be reported for each reporting period: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report complete statistics in each case category to display caseload inventory.
- See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Do not confuse caseload inventory and caseflow. **Caseload inventory** is a statistical count of cases being processed by
  the court, whereas **caseflow** pertains to the actual steps in
  the case processing.
- A count of **defendants** in **criminal cases**, **traffic cases**, and **juvenile cases** should also be kept for internal purposes. The number of defendant dispositions should be reported in caseload inventory.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

COURT, INTERMEDIATE APPELLATE see intermediate appellate court

COURT OF GENERAL JURISDICTION A trial court that has original jurisdiction over all subject matter or persons within its geographical limits except those that may be assigned by law to a special or limited jurisdiction court. (See trial court, court of limited or special jurisdiction.)

Synonym: major trial court.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Identify the subject matter jurisdiction of each court.

Annotation: General jurisdiction courts are courts of record. In the criminal area, general jurisdiction courts have felony jurisdiction and the authority to impose maximum sentence or fine. In the civil area, they have unlimited jurisdiction in equity and at law, except over those matters specifically assigned to a limited or special jurisdiction court.

Subject matter jurisdiction of courts of general jurisdiction varies from state to state. In some states the trial courts are unified and hear all matters. In others the general jurisdiction courts that try criminal cases are completely separate from those that hear civil actions. Some states have classified as general jurisdiction courts those that try only a special class(es) of cases (such as chancery and probate in Arkansas or the tax court in Oregon).

Many states give the general jurisdiction courts the authority to hear appeals of administrative agency cases and of trial court cases. These courts have incidental appellate jurisdiction.

COURT OF LAST RESORT An appellate court that has final jurisdiction over appeals within a state.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Identify the subject matter jurisdiction of each court.
- Specify the name of the court of last resort.

Annotation: Court names vary from state to state and do not always clearly indicate by themselves which is the highest court. (In New York, for example, the supreme court is the general jurisdiction court, while the court of last resort is called the court of appeals, a name used in many other states for an intermediate appellate court.)

There is a single court of last resort in every state except Oklahoma and Texas, which have separate courts for civil and criminal appeals.

In a state that has an intermediate appellate court, the highest court serves primarily to develop law and supervise the judiciary, the latter sometimes referred to as superintending control.

There is no further review within the state's judicial system beyond the court of last resort of a trial court judgment, an administrative agency decision, or an intermediate appellate court decision, although an issue of law may exist that permits a further review by a federal court.

COURT OF LIMITED OR SPECIAL JURISDICTION A trial court that has legal jurisdiction over only the specific subject matter or persons assigned by law or statute to that court. (See trial court.)

Court Statistical Usage:

- Identify the subject matter jurisdiction of each court.

Annotation: Many states have courts with special original jurisdiction over one type of case--probate or small claims or traffic or juvenile cases.

Limited jurisdiction courts may have a wide range of jurisdiction, but be limited in dollar amount handled or severity of penalty levied: Civil jurisdiction may be limited, for example, to civil cases with a maximum dollar amount in controversy; criminal jurisdiction may be limited by amount of fine or sentence imposed. As a result, criminal jurisdiction is generally limited to petty offenses and misdemeanors, and the holding of preliminary hearings for felony cases.

Courts of general jurisdiction may exercise jurisdiction concurrently with courts of limited jurisdiction, depending on the state constitution or statutes. (See concurrent jurisdiction.)

**COURT OF RECORD** A court in which a complete and permanent record of all or specified types of proceedings is kept. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

Annotation: Trial proceedings are generally recorded verbatim. The record, usually in the form of either a stenotype or shorthand representation of what has been said and done, or an audio-tape, is not necessarily transcribed. The court reporter may store such material in the original form and it will not be converted into a typed transcript unless the record pertaining to a case is requested. (adapted from the Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology, second edition)

COURT TRIAL see non-jury trial

COURT WORKLOAD see workload, court

# CRIMINAL CASE A broad classification category for trial court caseload that includes cases in which a defendant(s) is charged with the violation of a state law(s) or a local ordinance(s) other than a traffic law or ordinance.

Synonym: criminal action

## Court Statistical Usage:

- The other broad trial court case classifications are civil case, traffic case, and juvenile case.
- Report **caseload inventory** for criminal cases according to the subject matter at issue, as follows:
  - Felony case
  - Misdemeanor case
  - Preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only)
  - Ordinance (non-traffic) violation case
  - Appeal case

Appeal of trial court case

- Extraordinary writ case
- Postconviction remedy case
- Sentence review only case
- Other criminal case
- Count each original charging document filed (complaint, information, or indictment) as one criminal case (see unit of count). If the charging document contains multiple defendants, then also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory. (See the prototype on page 111.)
- Count multiple charges against one defendant as one case.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the number and type of trials and the disposition of the defendants should be reported in the appropriate category under criminal case manner of disposition.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Criminal cases are concerned with public wrongs, while civil cases are concerned with private rights.

Included in criminal cases will be such actions as criminal nonsupport, contributing to delinquency, and contributing to dependency and neglect. State statutes will determine the subcategory of criminal case in which to classify them.

# CRIMINAL CASE APPEAL (appellate court) A case filed in a court having appellate jurisdiction to review the judgment of a trial court or the decision of an intermediate appellate court in a criminal case.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Criminal case appeal is a subcategory of appeal case in appealate court caseload inventory. In criminal case appeals identify the subject matter at issue in the original case, using the following subcategories:

- Felony case appeal (see felony case)
- Misdemeanor case appeal (see misdemeanor case)
- Ordinance violation case appeal (see ordinance violation case)
- Traffic case appeal (see traffic case)
- Other criminal case appeal (see other criminal case)
- Do not include postconviction remedy cases under criminal case appeal (see postconviction remedy case).
- Do not include juvenile case appeals in this category (see juvenile case appeal).
- Do not include appeal of a trial court case (heard in a trial court) in this category (see appeal of a trial court case).
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of criminal case appeals should be reported under the appropriate category in the appellate court case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # CRIMINAL CASE MANNER OF DISPOSITION The manner in which a criminal case pending before a trial court is disposed.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report total criminal case dispositions in caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- Report the manner of disposition of criminal cases in trial courts and the outcome for the defendants as follows:
  - Jury trial

Conviction

Guilty Plea

Acquittal

Dismissed

• Non-jury trial

Conviction

Guilty Plea

Acquittal

Dismissed

- Dismissed/nolle prosequi (before trial)
- Bound over
- Transferred (before/during trial)
- Guilty plea (before trial)
- Bail forfeiture
- e Other manner of disposition
- The statistics in the subcategories under criminal case manner of disposition should indicate the number and type of trials and the disposition of the defendants. (See prototype on page 111).

- "Adjudication withheld" after trial begins or "sentence withheld" after trial begins should be reported as a conviction.
- . Diversion after trial begins should be counted as a **trial**, and the number of defendants indicated.
  - Guilty pleas before trial begins should be reported separately from guilty pleas after trial begins, where they should be reported as a subcategory under conviction.
  - **Dismissal** after trial begins should be reported as a subcategory under **acquittal**.
  - See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

# CRIMINAL NON-SUPPORT see criminal case

# CRIMINAL-TYPE OFFENDER CASE A juvenile case category that includes behavior of a juvenile that would be a crime if committed by an adult.

- Criminal-type offender case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification juvenile case.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of **juvenile cases** according to the following subcategories:
  - Criminal-type offender case
  - Status offender case
  - Non-offender case
  - Other juvenile matters
- See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Classify any delinquent behavior subject to court hearing as a criminal-type offender case.
- Include as criminal-type offender cases those pretrial hearings requesting waiver or transfer of a juvenile to an adult criminal court, and report "certified to an adult court" as the disposition, if granted.
- Report posttrial hearings in criminal-type offender cases as new cases, by case subcategory. Examples are hearings on petitions for probation revocation and commitment, review of status, modification or revocation of original commitment, transfer to a more restrictive correctional institution, and so forth. (See reopened case.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: This case catetory is adopted from the classifications for juvenile cases used by the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP) of the Department of Justice.

CUSTODY

see support/custody case

DEBT

see contract case

DECEDENT'S ESTATE
see probate/wills/intestate case

DEFAULT

see uncontested/default

# DEFENDANT A person required to answer an accusation in a criminal case or traffic case, or a complaint in a civil case.

Synonym: respondent

Court Statistical Usage:

- In criminal cases and in traffic cases a count for internal purposes at both time of filing and time of disposition of both charging documents and defendants should be kept. The filing and disposition of the charging documents should be reported in caseload inventory; the number of defendants disposed in caseload inventory; the disposition of the dedefendants under manner of disposition.
- If a defendant is tried on multiple charging documents in a single trial, the manner of disposition that should be reported would be the most serious manner of disposition (i.e., conviction or guilty plea).
- If a defendant is tried on different charges in separate trials, a defendant manner of disposition should be reported for each trial.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: For statistical purposes, a person becomes a defendant in a criminal case when the formal accusation is entered into the record of the **court** and remains a defendant until the prosecutor withdraws the prosecution, or the court **dismisses** the case or otherwise determines that **judgment** will not be pronounced, or until the court pronounces judgment (acquittal or conviction).

A co-defendant is one of two or more persons named in a single charging document or tried in the same **trial** proceeding.

In civil proceedings, the defendant is the person against whom relief or recovery is sought in a civil action or suit, the one who defends against or denies a complaint or charge. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

#### DELINOUENCY

see criminal-type offender case

DENIED

see granted/denied

DEPENDENCY AND NEGLECT see non-offender case

DIRECTED VERDICT TRIAL see jury trial

# DISCIPLINARY MATTER A subcategory of original proceeding case that includes cases involving the supervisory jurisdiction of an appellate court over any conduct of judges or attorneys that affects the performance of their official or professional duties.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in appellate court caseload inventory as a subcategory under original proceeding case, as follows:
  - Original jurisdiction case
  - Disciplinary matter
  - Advisory opinion case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of disciplinary matters should be reported under the appropriate category in the appellate court case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Supervisory jurisdiction varies from state to state, and is conferred on the appellate court by constitution, statute, or case law (inherent power).

Disciplinary matters arise generally from alleged violations of the judicial code of conduct or of the bar's code of ethics. They typically involve an **action** to censure or remove a judge, or to disbar an attorney.

# DISCIPLINARY REVIEW BOARD OF A CORRECTIONS AGENCY see administrative agency

DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION

see mandatory jurisdiction/discretionary jurisdiction

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW
see appeal of right/discretionary review

# DISMISSED A category for reporting a manner of disposition that terminates the jurisdiction of an appellate court or of a trial court before a judgment is reached.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Dismissals in appellate court cases should be classified as dismissed/withdrawn/settled.
- In **trial courts**, dismissals that occur before **trial** begins should be reported separately from those that occur during trial.
- Dismissals before trial in civil cases should be classified as dismissed/withdrawn/settled.
- Dismissals before trial in **criminal cases** and in **traffic cases** should be classified as **dismissed/nolle prosequi**, which should indicate a count of **defendants**.
- Dismissal during trial in criminal cases should be reported as a subcategory under **acquittals**, and should indicate a count of **defendants**. Traffic case dismissals during trial can be reported in the same way.
- In preliminary hearings the manner of disposition of cases in which no probable cause is found should be reported as dismissed/nolle prosequi.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Reasons for dismissal may include lack of jurisdiction, procedural irregularities, etc.

Dismissals may be with or without prejudice, the latter permitting the **plaintiff** to file another **action** arising out of the same subject matter.

# DISMISSED/NOLLE PROSEQUI For statistical reporting purposes, a category for reporting the manner of disposition of a criminal case or a traffic case in which the jurisdiction of the court is terminated before trial, or in which the prosecutor declares that he will not proceed with the case.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a trial court case manner of disposition in criminal cases and in traffic cases.
- Dismissed/nolle prosequi should indicate a count of defendants.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # DISMISSED/WITHDRAWN/SETTLED For statistical reporting purposes, a category for reporting the manner of disposition of any case in any appellate court or of a civil case in a trial court, in which the jurisdiction of the court is terminated before decision or trial, or which is removed from the court by the plaintiff before a decision or judgment is reached, or which is settled by the parties involved before a decision or judgment is reached.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as an appellate court case manner of disposition.
- Classify as a trial court case manner of disposition in civil cases.
- Dismissed/withdrawn/settled should indicate a case count.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

#### DISPOSED

see disposition

# DISPOSITION For statistical reporting purposes, the termination of a case pending before a court.

- Report dispositions as part of caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- Report the termination of each case as indicated under manner of disposition.
- The total dispositions figure in each case category in caseload inventory should be an aggregate count of the total number of cases in that category disposed by the court during the reporting period. The statistics in the manner of disposition classification scheme provide, in addition, an accounting of what happened to the defendants involved in criminal cases and traffic cases. Under criminal case manner of disposition, for example, jury trial and non-jury

trial will indicate how many cases were disposed by trial, but conviction and acquittal will indicate what happened to the defendant(s). The same is true of dismissed/nolle prosequi, bound over, transferred, guilty plea, bail forfeiture; these statistics will indicate what happened to the defendant(s) rather than a case count.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

#### DIVERSION

see criminal case manner of disposition other manner of disposition, criminal cases

#### **DI VORCE**

see marriage dissolution case

# DOMESTIC RELATIONS CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases involving family actions such as divorce, separation, annulment, custody, paternity, adoption, support, reciprocal support, and termination of parental rights.

Synonym: domestic and family (SJIS data element), family action.

- Domestic relations case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case. See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Classify the **caseload inventory** of domestic relations cases using the following subcategories:
  - Marriage dissolution case
  - Support/custody case
  - Adoption case
  - Other domestic relations case
- Even though in some states **juvenile cases** are handled in the same court as domestic relations cases, juvenile cases should be reported separately (see **juvenile case** and **non-offender case**). Child support and custody cases are part of domestic relations caseload in nationwide statistics. Classify them separately from juvenile cases.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of domestic relations cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition classification scheme.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE see **DWI/DUI case** 

DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED see DWI/DUI case

DRUGS

see felony
misdemeanor
DWI/DUI case

# DWI/DUI CASE A subcategory of traffic cases that involves a charge of driving while intoxicated or driving under the influence (of either alcohol or drugs).

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify the caseload inventory of traffic violations as follows:
  - DWI/DUI case
  - Other traffic violation case
  - Parking violation case

The first two categories generally come into a trial court on a complaint or information.

- See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of DWI/DUI cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the traffic case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

#### EMINENT DOMAIN

see real property rights case

# END PENDING (cases) For statistical reporting purposes, the number of cases awaiting disposition in a particular court at the end of a reporting period.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report caseload inventory statistics in each case catetory for a reporting period as beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases). (See court caseload inventory.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

# ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY see administrative agency

EQUITY A system of civil justice, distinct from the system based on common law, which provides discretionary remedies for wrongs not redressable under the legal strictures of common law.

Synonym: chancery

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report cases by the subject matter at issue rather than by the kind of remedy sought.

Annotation: See equity case.

Some states report equity and chancery cases. Other states report **injunctions**, which are a remedy in a suit in equity. (See **injunction**.)

EQUITY CASE A category of civil court cases in which civil wrongs are redressed by applying the rules of equity as distinguished from cases decided according to common law.

Synonym: equitable action, suit in equity

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report cases by the subject matter at issue; do not report the type of remedy sought.

Annotation: Some states have separate equity and law divisions in their trial courts. Some states report equity cases, law cases, injunctions, and the like, but comparable interstate caseload cannot be compiled without knowing the subject matter of the cases.

ERROR, WRIT OF
see request to appeal case
writ

# ESTATE CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases dealing primarily with the following civil matters:

Administration of estates of deceased persons who died testate or intestate, including settling legal disputes concerning wills.

Guardianships and conservatorships. Administration of trusts.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Estate case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case. See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Classify the **caseload inventory** of estate cases under the following subcategories:
  - Probate/wills/intestate case
  - Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case
  - Other estate case
- Guardianships, conservatorships, and trusteeships should be reported separately in age of pending caseload data because they run for periods of years that would skew age of pending caseload data.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of estate cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

<u>Annotation</u>: Legal disputes over wills can involve either the determination of the legality of the will itself or disputes over the provisions of the will.

Estate cases in some states are handled in separate special jurisdiction courts (usually called probate court, but sometimes called surrogates court); other states have separate divisions in their trial courts to hear estate cases; in others, estate cases are heard as part of the general jurisdiction court caseload.

Some probate courts handle adoption cases, but these should be reported separately in order to include them with domestic relations cases in nationwide caseload inventory.

Probate of wills is not reported in some states as a court case, but rather as a ministerial action. The distinction should be made in **caseload inventory** between informal proceedings ("those conducted without notice to interested persons by an officer of the court acting as a registrar for the probate of a will or appointment of a personal representative," Uni-

form Probate Code) and formal proceedings ("those conducted before a judge with notice to interested parties," Uniform Probate Code). Some states do not report informal proceedings as cases.

Statistics should also indicate contested court hearings as opposed to uncontested probate actions. These will appear under manner of disposition as default (uncontested) or trial (contested).

EXECUTORS OF ESTATES
see probate/wills/intestate case

EXTRADITION see other criminal case

EXTRAORDINARY REMEDY/RELIEF
see extraordinary writ case
original jurisdiction case

EXTRAORDINARY WRIT (appellate court) see original jurisdiction case

# EXTRAORDINARY WRIT CASE (trial court) A major classification category for cases (either civil or criminal) involving any one of a group of prerogative writs requested by a party, which if granted, provides an extraordinary remedy to the petitioner.

Synonym: prerogative writ case

- Extraordinary writ case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classifications civil case and criminal case. Indicate whether the case is civil or criminal.
- The extraordinary writs issued by trial courts that should be included in this classification are habeas corpus, mandamus, quo warranto, coram nobis, and prohibition. Report the extraordinary writs as filed cases only when they are the subject of the original case. Other actions in which the writ is only one proceeding in the case should be classified according to the subject matter of the case. An injunction, which is a writ, should not be counted separately from the case in which it is granted unless it is the subject of the case.
- Writ of certiorari and writ of error should be classified as requests to appeal.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of extraordinary writ cases at the trial court level should be reported under other manner of disposition.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Some states have merged the extraordinary writs into a single catch-all category; e.g., in New York they are called simply Article 78 cases.

#### FAMILY ACTIONS

see domestic relations case

# FELONY CASE A major criminal case category that involves an offense punishable by death, or by incarceration in a confinement facility for a period of which the lower limit is prescribed by statute in a given jurisdiction, typically one year or more. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Termi-</u> nology, first edition)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Felony case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification criminal case.
- Court each original charging document filed as one criminal case. If the charging document contains multiple defendants, then also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of **felonies** and **misdemeanors** separately, and define the limits of punishment as set by constitution or statute.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, termination of felony cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the criminal case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- Report felony preliminary hearings separately if they are held in a court other than that which will try the felony case. See preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only).

Annotation: Courts of general jurisdiction have jurisdiction to try all criminal offenses, not only felonies. It is their unlimited felony trial jurisdiction, however, which sets them

apart from courts of limited jurisdiction. There are states in which courts of limited jurisdiction have no felony jurisdiction. In those states where they do have felony trial jurisdiction, it is restricted. In a few states, they have jurisdiction over those felonies where the penalty prescribed falls below a certain statutorily specified limit. In these cases, the courts of general jurisdiction maintain concurrent jurisdiction over those felonies which the courts of limited jurisdiction are also empowered to try., (adapted from the Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology, first edition)

FELONY PRELIMINARY HEARING see preliminary hearing felony

FILED

see filing

# FILING For statistical reporting purposes, the beginning of a court case by formal submission of a document to the court alleging the facts and requesting relief. (See unit of count.)

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Report caseload inventory statistics in each category for a reporting period as beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- Count filings as indicated under unit of count in order to establish court caseload.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: For statistical reporting purposes, filing pertains solely to the commencement of a court case. (Other documents, such as motions, etc., can be filed in the court at other points in the proceedings, but are not counted by courts as "filings" for caseload inventory purposes.)

The document (complaint, petition, indictment, information, notice of appeal) that is filed should be specified in order to establish the unit of count for internal and nationwide statistics. Caseload statistics that do not count the same units are not comparable.

The point at which a case is considered to be filed, if it differs from the recommendations under unit of count, should also be specified in order to permit comparable caseload and time interval data.

FILING DOCUMENT

see complaint, civil
complaint, criminal
complaint, traffic
filing
indictment
information
notice of appeal
petition
unit of count

FORECLOSURE

see real property rights case

FUGITIVE

see other manner of disposition, criminal cases

FULL OPINION

see opinion

**GARNISHMENT** A statutory proceeding whereby a person's property, money, or credits in possession or under control of, or owing by, another are applied to the payment of the former's debt to a third person.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Garnishment is a supplementary or post-judgment remedy in cases when money is owed, such as contracts, torts, domestic relations, small claims, etc. Report those cases according to the subject matter at issue in the case. Do not count garnishment or other supplementary proceedings as separate cases because no new issue of merit is involved in such proceedings.

GENERAL JURISDICTION COURT
see court of general jurisdiction

GIFTS TO MINORS

see other estate case

# GRANTED/DENIED For statistical reporting purposes, the decision of a court to accept or reject a petition made to the court.

- Classify under manner of disposition in appellate courts.
- In appellate courts report whether request to appeal petitions were granted or denied. Report a new filing under appeals for those requests that were granted.

- In appellate courts report whether petitions requesting postconviction remedy were granted or denied. Report a new filing under appeals for those requests that were granted.
- In appellate courts report whether petitions requesting extraordinary relief (original jurisdiction cases) were granted or denied.
- Report whether requests for advisory opinions were granted or denied.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # GUARDIANSHIP/COMSERVATORSHIP/TRUSTEESHIP CASE A subcategory of estate case that includes cases involving the establishment of or a controversy over

guardianship—the relation existing between a person (guardian) lawfully invested with the power and charged with the duty of taking care of the rights of another person (ward) who is considered by the **court** as incapable of caring for himself/herself;

conservatorship—the relation existing between a person (conservator) lawfully invested with the power and charged with the duty of taking care of the property of another person who is considered by the court as incapable of managing his own affairs; or cases involving a controversy over a trusteeship—the legal possession of real or personal property held by one person for the benefit of another.

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under estate case, as follows:
  - Probate/wills/intestate case
  - Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case
  - Other estate case
- Cases involving guardianship, conservatorship, or trusteeship continue under the jurisdiction of the court over a period of years, and should be reported as a separate subcategory of estate cases in **end pending** and **age of pending** caseload statistics.
- In some states guardianships may be reported as part of juvenile caseload because they involve juveniles. Report them separately as guardianship cases so they can be included with estate cases in nationwide caseload statistics.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Some states include the management of property (conservatorship) as part of guardianship. This will not affect case count if the **estate** classification is maintained.

A trusteeship is not a court case unless a civil action is initiated in court relating to the establishment of the trust relationship.

GUILTY PLEA BY WAIVER see bail forfeiture

# GUILTY PLEA A disposition classification for those cases in which the defendant admits having committed an offense with which he is charged, or a lesser included offense.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in criminal cases and in traffic cases if the guilty plea occurs before trial begins. After trial begins, a guilty plea should be classified as a subcategory under conviction.
- Guilty pleas should indicate a count of defendants.
- Include pleas to a lesser included offense, less than all charges, substituted charge, etc.
- Include nolo contendere and non vult contendere cases under guilty plea.
- Do not include in this category those guilty pleas by waiver that can be classified as **bail forfeiture**.
- Voluntary payment of fine in all traffic cases except parking violation cases should be included under guilty pleas.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

<u>Annotation</u>: Nolo contendere is not an admission of guilt, but exposes the defendant to the same punishment as if convicted by the court.

In some jurisdictions the defendant must appear before a judge to plead guilty. This should not be counted as a trial because no evidence is introduced.

HABEAS CORPUS, WRIT OF

see extraordinary writ case original jurisdiction case postconviction remedy case writ INACTIVE STATUS

see other manner of disposition, civil and criminal

INCIDENTAL APPELLATE JURISDICTION The authority given in many states to trial courts to review the judgments of trial courts or of administrative agencies.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Distinguish between an appellate court and a trial court having incidental appellate jurisdiction. Trial courts in many states have the authority to review the judgments of trial courts or of administrative agencies, including completely rehearing an already decided case (see trial de novo). Therefore, these courts are said to have incidental appellate jurisdiction. They report a case category called appeals. They are not, however, called appellate courts. (See appellate court.)

INCOMPETENCY

see mental health case

INCORRIGIBLE CHILD

see status offender case

INDICTMENT A formal written accusation submitted to a court by a grand jury, alleging that a specified person(s) has committed a specified offense(s), usually a felony. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Statistical reports should specify how cases are being counted (see unit of count).
- Count the original charging document in criminal cases in trial courts. The charging document may include multiple defendants. If it does, also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.

Annotation: An indictment is a type of charging document and initiates the trial stage of a felony case after grand jury consideration. The usual procedure is for a prosecutor to present allegations and evidence to a grand jury . . . and for the grand jury, if it agrees that there is sufficient evidence to sustain an accusation(s), to "return an indictment." The indictment delivered to the court states the facts about the alleged crime as found by the grand jury and cites the penal code sections believed to have been violated.

In some jurisdictions all felony cases must be tried through indictment by a grand jury, but in others felony trials will ordinarily be initiated by the filing of an **information** by a

prosecutor. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data</u> Terminology, second edition)

For internal purposes, a record of the date the grand jury presents an indictment is important in calculating age of pending caseload data.

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Statistical reports should specify how cases are being counted (see unit of count).
- Count the original charging document in **criminal cases** and **juvenile cases** in **trial courts**. The charging document may include multiple defendants. If it does, also count the **de**fendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory. If a non-**felony** traffic offense is charged on an **information**, count a **traf**-**fic case** for each charging document. If both criminal and traffic charges appear on the same charging document, the case should be classified according to the most serious charge. (Traffic cases regarded as felonies should be reported as criminal cases.)

Annotation: An information is a type of charging document and initiates a criminal case. This term is usually the name for the accusation filed by the prosecutor to initiate the trial stage of a felony case . . .

In some jurisdictions the prosecutor does not formally initiate felony trials; all felony cases reach the trial court by way of grand jury indictment. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

INFRACTION In some states, a category created by statute for an offense other than a felony or misdemeanor, punishable by a fine or other penalty, but not by incarceration. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Most infractions are traffic cases. Classify these under other traffic violations. The other infractions will probably be ordinance violations, and should be so classified.

Annotation: This term is . . . a name for the type of offense, often a traffic violation, which is not punishable by incarceration, and is sometimes disposed by administrative hearing. Some state codes define a specific, named class of offenses not punishable by incarceration; others do not. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Termi-</u> nology, second edition)

#### INHERITANCE

## see probate/wills/intestate estate case

INJUNCTION A writ issued by a court that commands, instructs, or requires a party to perform or to abstain and desist from performing, some act.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Cases should be classified by the subject matter at issue, whenever possible. When a petition for an injunction is the sole subject of a case, classify it as an extraordinary writ case. When a petition for an injunction is only one step in the proceedings of a case, do not count the petition as a separate case.

Annotation: A party petitions a court and requests that it award an injunction when it appears that the remedy provided by the law (damages) is not adequate or may come too late to provide relief.

Injunctions are preliminary, provisional, or interlocutory if they are granted on the **filing** of a **complaint** or while the suit is **pending**, to restrain the **party** enjoined from doing or continuing to do the acts complained of, until final hearing or the further order of the court. They are final, perpetual, or permanent, if they are awarded after full hearing on the merits, and as a final determination of the rights of the parties.

INTERLOCUTORY APPEAL A request, made at some point before judgment in trial court proceedings, that a court having appellate jurisdiction review a decision of the trial court before final judgment is reached. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

## Court Statistical Usage:

- In states that permit interlocutory appeals, classify as a request to appeal or an appeal according to the subject matter at issue in the case. (See appeal case.)

Annotation: Unlike appeals following completion of trial court proceedings, interlocutory appeals do not challenge the trial court's decision in the case as a whole, but only the correctness of some particular prejudgment decision. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

Some states permit interlocutory appeals, others do not.

INTERMEDIATE APPELLATE COURT An appellate court that hears appeals from trial courts and administrative agencies as specified by state law or at the discretion of the court of last resort in the state. Decisions of an intermediate appellate court are generally subject to review by the court of last resort.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify intermediate appellate courts and courts of last resort as appellate courts. Indicate the subject matter jurisdiction of each.

Annotation: Intermediate appellate courts have been established in over half the states.

#### INTESTATE

see probate/wills/intestate case

INVENTORY

see court caseload inventory

JUDGE TRIAL

see non-jury trial

JUDGMENT An official determination by the court regarding the rights and obligations of the parties to a case.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- For statistical reporting purposes, judgment is used here in very broad terms to include any court decision, and embraces all of the case terminations indicated under manner of disposition.
- Although judgment is frequently used as a disposition term, in this classification scheme the terms included under manner of disposition reflect the kinds of judgments that should be reported (see pages 7 and 8).
- JURISDICTION The territory, subject matter, or persons over which lawful authority may be exercised by a court, as determined by statute or constitution. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of</u> Criminal Justice Data Terminology, second edition)
- # JURY TRIAL A trial in which a group of citizens are impaneled to determine the issues of fact in a case.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition of aivil cases, criminal cases, and traffic cases.

- Report complete trial data when the judgment is reached, including the verdict reached in criminal cases and traffic cases.

Trial data will apply to cases (civil, criminal, traffic), whereas verdict data will give a **defendant** count in **criminal** cases and **traffic cases**.

- Specify the type of trial: jury or non-jury.
- A jury trial should be counted as beginning when the jury has been sworn and the first evidence introduced.
- For internal purposes, count trials once they are begun, regardless of whether a **verdict** is reached.
- A mistrial should not be reported as a jury trial if the case is to be retried, until the new trial is terminated. If the case is **dismissed** after mistrial, count as a subcategory under **acquittal**.
- Report directed verdict trials under jury trial.
- Trials de novo should be reported as a subcategory of jury trial or non-jury trial.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: In current practice the point at which states are counting jury trials varies widely. Some states count trials when the first juror is examined; some when the jury is sworn; some when the first witness is sworn; some at verdict; others at intervening points.

A large number of states permit variations in the traditional use of 12-member juries.

The use of advisory juries occurs when a judge impanels an advisory jury to advise as to a fact finding. (Condemnation cases or divorce cases where custody is an issue are examples.) These are not counted as jury trials.

# JUVENILE CASE A broad classification category for court caseload involving juveniles in trial courts, which follow the special procedures that each state has for handling matters pertaining to individuals who are defined as juveniles.

Synonym: juvenile action

- The other broad trial court case classifications are civil case, criminal case, and traffic case.
- See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Report the caseload inventory of juvenile cases as follows:
  - Criminal-type offender case
  - Status offender case
  - Non-offender case
  - Other juvenile matters

- The filing document in a juvenile case is generally a petition. In a criminal case involving a juvenile, the filing document can be a complaint or information. Statistical reports should indicate how cases are being counted. (See unit of count.)
- If child support cases are handled in juvenile caseload, report them separately so that they can be included with domestic relations cases in nationwide statistics.
- If juvenile traffic cases are handled in juvenile caseload, report them separately so that they can be included with traffic cases in nationwide statistics.
- Report total juvenile case dispositions in trial court caseload inventory.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The case subcategories above are adopted from those used by the OJJPD in the Department of Justice.

Court actions that are directed against adults as the result of adult behavior toward juveniles should not be classified as juvenile cases. (For examples, see domestic relations case and guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case.)

# JUVENILE CASE APPEAL (appellate court) An appeal case involving review of a judgment of a trial court in a juvenile case.

- Juvenile case appeal is a subcategory of appeal case in appellate courts. Report the caseload of juvenile case appeals separately from criminal case appeals, civil case appeals, postconviction remedy case appeals, and appeals of administrative agency cases.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caselcad inventory, the termination of juvenile case appeals should be reported under the appropriate category in the appellate court case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # JUVENILE CASE DISPOSITION For statistical reporting purposes, the termination of a juvenile case pending before a trial court.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Juvenile case dispositions in trial courts should be reported in the same case categories as cases filed, as part of caseload inventory. The number of defendant dispositions should also be displayed in caseload inventory.
- Juvenile case manner of disposition has not yet been classified in this dictionary.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

JUVENILE IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (JINS) see status offender case

LANDLORD AND TENANT

see real property rights case

LAW CASE The hearing of a civil case on the basis of common law and case law, in contrast to a suit in equity. (See common law.)

Synonym: action at law

Court Statistical Usage:

- Report cases by the subject matter at issue; do not report the type of remedy sought.

Annotation: Some states have separate equity and law divisions in their trial courts. Some states report equity cases, law cases, injunctions, and the like, but comparable interstate caseload cannot be compiled without knowing the subject matter of the cases.

LEGISLATIVE APPORTIONMENT CASE see original jurisdiction case

LICENSING BOARDS see administrative agency

LIEN

see real property rights case

LIMITED JURISDICTION COURT
see court of limited or special jurisdiction

LOSS OF CONSORTIUM see other tort case

MAJORITY OPINION see opinion

MAJOR TRIAL COURT see court of general jurisdiction

MALPRACTICE see professional tort case

MANDAMUS, WRIT OF see extraordinary writ case

MANDATORY JURISDICTION/DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION The distinction between the obligation placed by constitution or statute on an appellate court to consider appeals of right and decide if they have sufficient merit to receive a full hearing and a decision, and the authority of an appellate court to decide whether it will grant a request to appeal.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Indicate clearly the jurisdiction of the appellate court(s).
- # MANNER OF DISPOSITION, APPELLATE COURT CASE The manner in which a case pending before an appellate court is disposed.

Synonym: termination

## Court Statistical Usage:

- Total appellate court case dispositions should be reported according to the subject matter of the case filed, as part of caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- The following classification scheme is suggested for reporting the manner in which appellate court cases were disposed:
  - Opinion

Affirmed

Modified

Reversed

Reversed and remanded

Remanded

Granted/denied

Memorandum decision

Affirmed

Modified

Reversed

Reversed and remanded

Remanded

Granted/denied

• Order (decision without opinion)

Affirmed

Modified

Reversed

Reversed and remanded

Remanded

Granted/denied

- Dismissed/withdrawn/settled
- Transferred
- Other
- The statistics reported for opinion, memorandum decision, and order should indicate the number of opinions, memorandum decisions, or orders issued--not the number of cases disposed in this manner. The aggregate statistics under the type of decision (affirmed, modified, etc.) should sum to the total number of cases settled by opinion, by memorandum decision, or by order. (See prototype on page 111.)
- The distinction should be made in appellate court case manner of disposition categories, whenever possible, between civil cases and criminal cases.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CIVIL CASE see civil case manner of disposition

MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CRIMINAL CASE see criminal case manner of disposition

MANNER OF DISPOSITION, TRAFFIC CASE see traffic case manner of disposition

# MANNER OF DISPOSITION, TRNAL COURT CASE The manner in which a case pending before a trial court is disposed.

Synonym: termination

- Total trial court case dispositions should be reported according to the subject matter of the case filed, as part of caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- The following classification scheme is suggested for reporting the manner in which trial court cases were disposed:

```
• Civil case manner of disposition
    Jury trial
    Non-jury trial
    Uncontested/default
    Dismissed/withdrawn/settled (before trial)
    Transferred (before/during trial)
    Arbitration
    Other manner of disposition
• Criminal case manner of disposition
    Jury trial
       Conviction
         Guilty plea
       Acquittal
         Dismissed
    Non-jury trial
       Conviction
         Guilty plea
       Acquittal
         Dismissed
    Dismissed/nolle prosequi (before trial)
    Bound over
    Transferred (before/during trial)
    Guilty plea (before trial)
    Bail forfeiture
    Other manner of disposition
• Traffic case manner of disposition
    Jury trial
       Conviction
       Acquittal
    Non-jury trial
       Conviction
       Acquittal
    Transferred (before/during trial)
    Guilty plea (before trial)
    Bail forfeiture
    Dismissed/nolle prosequi (before trial)
    Parking fines
    Other manner of disposition
```

- The aggregate statistics under criminal case and traffic case manner of disposition will not add up to the total case dispositions in caseload inventory because the subcategories under those headings are defendant dispositions, and some cases may have more than one defendant.
- Juvenile case manner of disposition has not yet been classified in this dictionary. Report total juvenile case dispositions in caseload inventory.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # Marage DISSOLUTION CASE A subcategory of domestic relations case that includes cases involving either divorce or annulment.

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under domestic relations case, as follows:
  - Marriage dissolution case
  - Support/custody case
  - Adoption case
  - Other domestic relations case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of marriage dissolution cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Marriage dissolution cases will include provisions for custody, support, alimony, and the like in the decree or judgment. If later issues arise and are brought back into the court, the reopened case should be classified as a new case according to subject matter, such as support/custody, a separate subcategory of domestic relations case.

MEAN

see time interval data

MEDIAN

see time interval data

MEDICAL MALPRACTICE
see professional tort case

# MEMORANDUM DECISION For statistical reporting purposes, a very brief written statement of the decision in an appellate case.

- Classify under manner of disposition, appellate court case.
- Report the total number of memorandum decisions, which may differ from the total number of cases settled by memorandum decision. One memorandum decision can settle more than one case. Consequently, the total number of cases settled by the total number of memorandum decisions should also be reported.
- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - · Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - Granted/denied
- The aggregate statistics for type of decision (affirmed, modified, etc.) should sum to the total number of cases settled by memorandum decision (see prototype on page 111).
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Memorandum decision and order are two ways of issuing appellate decisions without opinions. The difference is largely a matter of usage in the particular state.

MENTAL COMMITMENT OF A MINOR see other juvenile matter

# MENTAL HEALTH CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases in which a court is requested to make a legal determination as to whether an individual is mentally ill or incompetent and should be placed or should remain under care, custody, and treatment.

- Mental health case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of mental health cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Courts are reporting cases variously called alcoholics and mental, guardianships, conservatorships, incompetency, mental illness, and so forth. Mental health cases should be limited to mental illness categories involving commitment or commitment review, and should not include guardianships, conservatorships, incompetency hearings, or alcoholics that do not request institutional commitment. (See estate case.)

MENTAL ILLNESS

see mental health case

MINOR IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (MINS) see status offender case

MISCREANT

see status offender case

# MISDEMEANOR CASE A major criminal case category that involves an offense usually punishable by fine or incarceration or both for an amount of fine and period of time the upper limits of which are prescribed by statute and are generally less than those prescribed for a felony.

- Misdemeanor case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification criminal case.
- Count each original charging document filed as one criminal case. If the charging document contains multiple defendants, then also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of **felonies** and **misdemeanors** separately, and define the limits of punishment as set by constitution or statutes.
- Traffic cases that are misdemeanors should be reported separately as **traffic cases** (DWI/DUI or other traffic violations).
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of misdemeanor cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the criminal case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Some states are using the term infraction for those offenses for which incarceration is not a permitted penalty. In this classification scheme, infractions should be classified as either ordinance violation cases or traffic cases.

MISTRIAL

see jury trial

# MODIFIED A decision by an appellate court that changes the terms of, rather than reverses, a judgment of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court.

Court Statistical Usage:

- Indicate the kind of appellate decision under each of the following categories of manner of disposition, appellate court case, as appropriate:
  - Opinion
  - Memorandum decision
  - Order
- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - Granted/denied
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: An appellate court can either affirm, reverse, or modify the trial court or administrative agency judgment or intermediate appellate court decision, or portions thereof. It can also remand the case back to the trial court for further action.

MOTOR VEHICLE TORT see auto tort case

NAME CHANGE see other civil case

NEGLECT

see non-offender case

NEGLIGENCE

see tort case

NEW TRIAL In the broadest sense, any trial in which are examined issues of fact and law that have already been the subject of an earlier trial. (from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice</u> <u>Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Count under trial court case manner of disposition as a jury trial or non-jury trial.
- A case sent back for a new trial should be counted as a reopened case. (See reopened case.)
- # NOLLE PROSEQUI A formal entry upon the record by the prosecutor in which he declares that he will not proceed further in a criminal or traffic case.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a criminal case manner of disposition or traffic case manner of disposition in trial courts, as follows:

   Dismissed/nolle prosequi
- Dismissed/nolle prosequi should indicate a count of defendants.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: A procedural disposition used only in criminal or traffic cases in trial courts.

Include cases "withdrawn by the prosecutor" and "no information."

# NOLO CONTENDERE see guilty plea

# NON-JURY TRIAL A trial in which there is no jury and in which a judicial officer determines both the issues of fact and law in a case.

Synonym: court trial, bench trial, judge trial

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in civil cases, criminal cases, and traffic cases.
- Report complete trial data when the **judgment** is reached, including the **verdict** reached in criminal and traffic cases. Trial data will apply to cases, whereas verdict data will give a **defendant** count in criminal and traffic cases.

- Specify the type of trial: jury or non-jury.
- A non-jury trial should be counted as beginning when the first evidence is introduced.
- For internal purposes, count trials once they are begun, regardless of whether a **verdict** is ever reached.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- \* NON-OFFENDER CASE A juvenile case category involving a juvenile where the behavior of someone other than the juvenile causes the court to concern itself with the well-being of the juvenile.

Synonym: dependency and neglect

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Non-offender case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification juvenile case.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of juvenile cases according to the following subcategories:
  - Criminal-type offender case
  - Status offender case
  - Non-offender case
  - Other juvenile matters
- See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Report under non-offender cases all matters that have previously been classified under dependency or neglect. Guardianship cases involving juveniles should be reported separately in order to permit comparable guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship caseload nationwide.
- Court actions that are directed against adults as the result of adult behavior toward juveniles should not be classified as juvenile cases. (See other domestic relations case for examples.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: This case category is adopted from the classifications for juvenile cases adopted by OJJDP in the Department of Justice.

Dependency and neglect actions on behalf of a child allege that the parent, guardian, or person with whom the child lives fails to give proper care; or that the juvenile has suffered from unlawful holding out from school, inadequate medical care, lack of proper supervision, or the like.

Note that child abuse, abandonment, and contributing to delinquency or to dependency and neglect are classified as criminal **actions** on the part of the adult involved and charged, and should be reported as part of **criminal caseload**. Such actions are often grounds as well for juvenile **petitions** on behalf of the child.

NON-SUPPORT

see support/custody case
other criminal case
domestic relations case

NON VULT CONTENDERE see guilty plea

NO PROBABLE CAUSE
see preliminary hearing
probable cause

NOTICE OF APPEAL A document that informs a court having appellate jurisdiction that a party wants a court's judgment reviewed.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Count an appeal case as beginning with the filing of the notice of appeal in the court where the appeal will be heard.
- If the notice of appeal in an appellate case is filed in the trial court, do not count an appellate case until the notice is also docketed in the appellate court.

Annotation: In many states the notice of appeal is considered the start of an appeal case for reporting purposes. Others use perfection or submission as the starting point. The point at which an appeal case is counted is important for caseload statistics that are comparable from state to state, and for time interval data that are comparable from state to state.

\* OPINION For statistical reporting purposes, a written statement, by one or more appellate judges, of the decision in an appellate case, and of the legal reasons for the decision.

- Classify all appellate court opinions together under manner of disposition.
- Report the total number of opinions, which may differ from the total number of cases settled by opinion. Count no more than one opinion per case. However, one opinion can settle more than one case. Consequently, the total number of cases settled by the total number of opinions should also be reported.

- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - · Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - Granted/denied
- The aggregate statistics for type of decision (affirmed, modified; etc.) should sum to the total number of cases settled by opinion. (See prototype on page 111).
- Report advisory opinion cases as original proceeding cases; advisory opinion case is a case category, whereas opinion is a manner of disposition. (See advisory opinion case.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Opinions of the court are usually presented in writing and published in a court report. The states are reporting a number of kinds of opinions, but arriving at a consensus as to the meaning of each term poses problems. For example, a "full" opinion may be signed or unsigned, a "signed" opinion may be a full opinion or a majority opinion or something else. For statistical reporting purposes, distinctions between the kinds of opinions are not of great importance, except perhaps to note that per curiam opinions are often used for sensitive social issues that the court regards as better left unsigned, or for short opinions where the entire court is in agreement on the decision and the legal basis for the decision is well defined.

# ORDER (appellate) For statistical reporting purposes, a manner of disposing of an appellate case that is decided without opinion.

- Classify under manner of disposition.
- Report the total number of orders, which may differ from the total number of cases settled by order. One order can settle more than one case. Consequently, the total number of cases settled by the total number of orders should also be reported.
- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed

- Reversed and remanded
- Remanded
- Granted/denied
- The aggregate statistics for type of decision (affirmed, modified, etc.) should sum to the total number of cases settled by order. (See prototype on page 111).
- If the court order dismisses the case before a decision is reached, classify under **dismissed/withdrawn** rather than under **order**.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Every appellate action is embodied in an order. Only orders that terminate cases should be included in this manner of disposition category.

Memorandum decision and order are two ways of issuing appellate decisions without opinion. The difference is largely a matter of usage in the particular state.

# ORDINANCE (NON-TRAFFIC) VIOLATION CASE A criminal case category that includes cases involving violations of local regulations passed by county, city, municipal, or other local governing bodies.

- Ordinance (non-traffic) violation case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification criminal case.
- Count each original charging document as one case. If the charging document contains multiple defendants, then also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both cases and defendants dispositions in caseload inventory.
- The caseload inventory of traffic cases and of ordinance violation cases should be reported separately from felonies and misdemeanors in order to permit an accurate accounting of the more serious criminal offenses.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of ordinance violation cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the criminal case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Ordinance violations are called infractions in some states. Include with ordinance (non-traffic) violations those cases that are being called civil infractions in some states.

- ORIGINAL JURISDICTION The lawful authority of a court to hear or act upon a case from its beginning. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)
- # ORIGINAL JURISDICTION CASE A subcategory of original proceeding case that includes cases filed under statutory or constitutional provisions that authorize an appellate court to hear such cases in the first instance, but does not include disciplinary matters or advisory opinions.

- Classify in appellate court caseload inventory as a subcategory under original proceeding case, as follows:
  - Original jurisdiction case
  - Disciplinary matter
  - Advisory opinion case
- Include as **original jurisdiction cases** those **petitions** that request the appellate court to use its discretionary power to issue prerogative **writs**, thereby granting extraordinary relief, if such petitions are the subject of the case. If the writ is only one proceeding in an appeal case, do not count it separately from the **appeal case**.
- Also include under **original jurisdiction cases** those cases involving constitutional issues, legislative apportionment, contested elections, public interest matters, and similar issues filed initially in the appellate court.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of original jurisdiction cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the manner of disposition, appellate court case scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # ORIGINAL PROCEEDING CASE An appellate court case category in which a special action is brought in the first instance in an appellate court and considered a case, including original jurisdiction cases, disciplinary matters, and advisory opinion cases. (See original jurisdiction case, disciplinary matter, advisory opinion case).

- Original proceeding case is a subcategory of the larger classification, appellate court case.
- The caseload inventory of original proceeding cases should identify the subject matter of each case, using the following subcategories:
  - Original jurisdiction case
  - Disciplinary matter
  - Advisory opinion case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of original proceeding cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the manner of disposition, appellate court case scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER CIVIL CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category in which to place civil cases that cannot be identified as belonging in the other major civil classifications (tort, contract, real property rights, small claims, domestic relations, mental health, estate, appeal, extraordinary writ, or postconviction remedy case).

- Other civil case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case. Classify the caseload inventory of civil cases by the subject matter at issue whenever possible.
- Use other civil only for cases that cannot be classified elsewhere, such as name change or replevin. Include only those court actions that meet the definition of court case.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of other civil cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER CRIMINAL CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category in which to place criminal cases that cannot be identified as belonging in the other major criminal classifications (felony, misdemeanor, ordinance violation, appeal,

extraordinary writ, postconviction remedy, or sentence review only case).

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Other criminal case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification criminal case. Classify cases by the subject matter at issue whenever possible.
- Use other criminal only for cases that cannot be classified elsewhere, such as extradition. Include only those court actions that meet the definition of court case.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of other criminal cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the criminal case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER DOMESTIC RELATIONS CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category used to include domestic relations cases other than marriage dissolution, support/custody, and adoption

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under domestic relations case, as follows:
  - Marriage dissolution case
  - Support/custody case
  - Adoption case
  - Other domestic relations case
- Under other domestic relations case classify cases such as those involving paternity or bastardy, and termination of parental rights.
- Divorce cases in which provisions are made for custody, support, or alimony may be reopened if the parties seek to change these provisions. Count such actions as new cases and classify them as support/custody cases.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of other domestic relations cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

# OTHER ESTATE CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category used to include estate cases other than probate/wills/intestate cases and guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship cases.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify **estate cases** by the subject matter at issue where possible.
- Classify in **trial court caseload inventory** as a subheading under **estate case**, as follows:
  - Probate/wills/intestate case
  - Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case
  - Other estate case
- Under other estate case classify cases such as gifts to minors or corporate trusts (if they are within the jurisdiction of the court).
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of other estate cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER JUVENILE MATTERS For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category in which to classify juvenile cases that cannot be identified as belonging in the other major juvenile classifications (criminal-type offender, status offender, or non-offender case).

- Other juvenile matters is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification juvenile case.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of juvenile cases according to the following subcategories:
  - Criminal-type offender case
  - Status offender case
  - Non-offender case
  - Other juvenile matters
- Examples of cases that should be classified as **other juve- nile matters** are child marriage or mental commitment of a
- Do not include cases involving behavior of an adult, which should be classified under other domestic relations case, guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case, etc.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, APPELLATE CASES For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category to include those outcomes that cannot be classified in the other categories outlined under manner of disposition.

- Classify under manner of disposition, appellate court case.
- Report under other manner of disposition only dispositions that cannot be classified elsewhere, such as cases that have been consolidated.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CIVIL CASES For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category to include those outcomes that cannot be classified in the other categories outlined under civil case manner of disposition.

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in civil cases.
- Under other manner of disposition, civil cases, include the termination of extraordinary writ cases and postconviction remedy cases. Also include cases that have been consolidated.
- Cases that are treated as terminated for statistical purposes may not in fact be removed from the jurisdiction of the court. These should be subtracted from pending caseload and reported under other manner of disposition. Such cases include those that are transferred to an inactive status. The state should report how long cases are carried on the calendar before they are put on inactive status.
- If the case is reactivated or reopened, report as a new case, classified by the subject matter of the case. (See reopened case.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

# OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CRIMINAL CASES For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category to include those outcomes that cannot be classified in the other categories outlined under criminal case manner of disposition.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in criminal cases.
- Other manner of disposition, criminal cases, should indicate a defendant count.
- Under other manner of disposition, criminal cases, include the termination of extraordinary writ cases, postconviction remedy cases, and sentence review only cases. Also include cases that have been consolidated.
- Cases that are treated as terminated for statistical purposes may not in fact be removed from the jurisdiction of the court. These should be subtracted from pending caseload and reported under other manner of disposition. Include under this classification criminal cases in which the defendant has absconded or is a fugitive, if these cases are considered disposed, as well as abatement by death of defen-Include also cases such as those that are transferred to an inactive status, or to a diversion status (in those states where the case is filed in court before diversion). The state should report how long cases are carried on the calendar before they are put on inactive status.
- If the case is reactivated or reopened, report as a new case, classified by subject matter of the case. (See reopened case.)
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, TRAFFIC CASES For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category to include those outcomes that cannot be classified in the other categories outlined under traffic case manner of disposition.

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in traffic
- Other manner of disposition, traffic cases, should indicate a defendant count.
- Include only those traffic cases that cannot be classified under the other traffic case manner of disposition categories.

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER TORT CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a residual category used to include tort cases other than auto tort, professional tort, and product liability tort.

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under tort case, as follows:
  - Auto tort case
  - Professional tort case
  - Product liability tort case
  - Other tort case
- Classify tort cases whenever possible according to specific tort case subcategories. Use other tort case only for those cases that cannot be classified as auto tort, professional tort, or product liability tort. Examples are alienation of affection and loss of consortium, as well as tort cases involving air and water transportation.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of other tort cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # OTHER TRAFFIC VIOLATION CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a category in which to place traffic cases that do not belong in the other major traffic classifications (DWI/DUI or parking violations).

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify the caseload inventory of traffic violations as follows:
  - DWI/DUI case
  - Other traffic violation case
  - Parking violation case

The first two categories generally come into a trial court on a complaint or information.

- Include under other traffic violations all non-moving violations other than parking violations.

- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of other traffic violation cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the traffic case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- \* PARKING FINES One manner in which parking violations are disposed.

- If parking violations are reported as part of traffic caseload, count and report them separately in caseload inventory. Also report separately their termination by voluntary payment of fine as parking fines. The statistic will indicate a defendant count.
- Voluntary payment of fine in traffic cases other than parking violations should be reported under guilty pleas.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # PARKING VIOLATION CASE A subcategory of traffic cases that involves the parking of a motor vehicle in violation of a traffic ordinance.

- Classify parking violations in trial court caseload inventory separately from all other traffic cases as follows:
  - DWI/DUI case
  - Other traffic violation case
  - Parking violation case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of uncontested parking violation cases should be reported as parking fines. The termination of contested parking violations should be reported under the appropriate category in the traffic case manner of disposition classification scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

PAROLE BOARD

see administrative agency

PARTITION

see real property rights case

PARTY A person or legal entity with standing to bring an action or respond to an action before a court.

Annotation: In a court action, a party may be either plaintiff, defendant, third party, or intervenor.

PATERNITY

see other domestic relations case

PAYMENT OF FINE

see guilty plea parking fines

# PENDING The status of a case that has not been terminated or disposed by the court in which it was filed.

- Report caseload inventory statistics in each case category for a reporting period as beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases). (See beginning pending, filing, disposition, end pending.)
- Report current **pending caseload** as the number of cases at any given time that have been filed in a given court, or are before a given judicial officer, but have not reached disposition.
- Cases that are treated as terminated for statistical purposes may not in fact be removed from the **jurisdiction** of the court. These should be subtracted from pending caseload and their termination reported under **other manner of disposition**. Such cases include those that are transferred to an inactive status or diversion status (in those states where the case is filed in court before diversion).
- Guardianship, conservatorship, and trusteeship cases, because they remain under the jurisdiction of the court for unusually long periods of time, should be reported separately in order that they can be subtracted from pending caseload when age of pending casesload is being computed.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

PER CURIAM OPINION A written, unsigned opinion.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify under opinion (see manner of disposition, appellate court case, page 7).

Annotation: Per curiam and memorandum decision are not synonyms, although the terms are frequently used interchangeably. A per curiam includes an opinion, but a memorandum should not. Per curiam opinions are often used for sensitive social issues that the court regards as better left unsigned, or for short opinions where the court is in agreement on the decision and the legal basis for the decision is well-defined.

#### PERSONAL INJURY

see tort case
auto tort case
professional tort case
product liability tort case

PERSON IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (PINS) see status offender case

**PETITION** For statistical reporting purposes, a written document filed in a **court**, initiating a **case** and requesting a decision in a matter described therein.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report the type of case initiated by the petition.
- A petition or a civil complaint that begins an action is the unit of count for civil cases in most trial courts.
- A juvenile case is generally initiated by a petition.
- At the appellate level, a petition is the usual method of filing a request to appeal or an original jurisdiction case.
- Statistical reports should specify how cases are being counted. (See unit of count.)

Annotation: Other kinds of petitions can be filed, but do not initiate cases. They may be counted as part of court caseflow, but should not be included in caseload.

PETITIONER see plaintiff

PETITION FOR APPEAL/REVIEW see request to appeal case

PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI see request to appeal case

PLAINTIFF A person who initiates a court action. (from the Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology, second edition)

Synonyms: complainant, claimant, petitioner, appellant

Annotation: Plaintiff is the customary name for the person who initiates a civil action. In some states the prosecution in a criminal case (that is, "the people," as represented by government) is called the "plaintiff." (from the Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology, second edition)

# POSTCONVICTION REMEDY CASE A procedure whereby the lawfulness of the conviction of an offender may be challenged.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- In trial court caseload inventory, classify the caseload of postconviction remedy cases as a separate subcategory under either civil case or criminal case.
- In appellate court caseflow, classify the caseload of postconviction remedy cases as a subcategory of appeal case if jurisdiction is mandatory. If the appellate court has discretionary jurisdiction, classify the case as a postconviction remedy case request to appeal.
- In those states where the appellate court has discretionary jurisdiction over postconviction remedy cases, report the petition under request to appeal, and the manner of disposition as granted/denied. If the request is granted, report a separate filing of the resulting appeal.
- The manner of disposition of the resulting appeal, as well as of postconviction remedy cases in states where review is mandatory, should be reported according to the same manner of disposition, appellate court case scheme as for appeals.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The procedure in a postconviction remedy case is civil, so that some states may classify these cases as civil. The case in which the remedy is requested, however, is criminal, so that some states may classify postconviction remedy cases as criminal.

A postconviction procedure differs from a criminal case appeal in that it is not a direct review of the judgment of the trial court. It is a procedure used to contest a conviction after the defendant's opportunity for review by means of an appeal or request to appeal has passed.

Statutes or court rules determine in which court the request for postconviction remedy is presented. In some states the filing must be in a trial court.

Some of the procedures available for postconviction remedy are

writ of habeas corpus, motion for a new trial on newly discovered evidence, petition to reopen an appeal, and petition for extension of time to appeal.

POSTTRIAL HEARING (JUVENILE)
see criminal-type offender case

PRELIMINARY HEARING A proceeding before a judicial officer in which evidence is presented so that the court can determine whether there is sufficient cause to hold the accused for trial. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

# Court Statistical Usage:

- A preliminary hearing is a step in the processing of a **felony** (or in a very few states, of a serious **misdemeanor**) case.
- When the preliminary hearing takes place in the same court that will try the case, then the hearing is only one step in processing and the case should be reported in caseload inventory as a felony (or as a misdemeanor in certain states) case and the manner of disposition reported accordingly. However, when the preliminary hearing is held in a limited jurisdiction court and the defendant is bound over to a general jurisdiction court when probable cause is found, some other reporting mechanism is needed for manner of disposition.
- See preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only).

Annotation: Three facts must be determined in a preliminary hearing: (1) that there is probable cause to believe that a crime was committed, (2) that it was committed in that jurisdiction, and (3) that there is probable cause to believe that the defendant committed the crime.

# PRELIMINARY HEARING (LIMITED JURISDICTION COURT ONLY) For statistical reporting purposes, a category for reporting preliminary hearings that are held in a different court from that in which the case will be tried if the defendant is bound over.

- Report the caseload inventory of preliminary hearings held in limited jurisdiction courts in this category.
- Count each original charging document filed as one case. If the charging document contains multiple defendants, then for internal purposes also count the defendants. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.

- If no probable cause is found, report the termination under dismissed/nolle prosequi.
- If the charge is reduced and the defendant pleads, the manner of disposition should be reported under guilty plea.
- If the charge is reduced and a trial is held, report the trial outcome under **trial**.
- If probable cause is found and the defendant is bound over from one court to another, these actions should be reported separately (under **bound over**) from other **criminal cases** in statewide statistics in order to permit an accurate count of total criminal cases.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

#### PREROGATIVE WRIT

see extraordinary writ case original jurisdiction case

PRETRIAL HEARINGS (JUVENILE)
see criminal-type offender case

PRIVATE RIGHTS see civil case

PROBABLE CAUSE A set of facts and circumstances that would induce belief that a particular person had committed a specific crime. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data</u> Terminology, second edition)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- In preliminary hearings held in a court other than that in which the defendant will be tried, report the manner of disposition when probable cause is found as bound over. This will be a defendant count rather than a case count.
- In preliminary hearings the manner of disposition when no probable cause is found should be reported as **dismissed/** nolle prosequi (also a defendant count).

Annotation: The existence of "probable cause" is required to justify prosecution.

In felony cases the existence of probable cause will' be established in court in a hearing usually called a preliminary hearing (see preliminary hearing) or by a grand jury, before felony trial proceedings begin. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

# 

# PROBATE/WILLS/INTESTATE CASE A subcategory of estate case that includes cases involving (1) the determination of whether a will is a valid instrument, (2) the statutory method of establishing its proper execution, and (3) in cases where the decedent did not make a will, the determination of the disposition of the decedent's estate.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under estate cases, as follows:
  - Probate/wills/intestate case
  - Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case
  - Other estate case
- Include court actions providing for estate administration, appointment of executors, inheritances, and so forth.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of pro-bate/wills/intestate cases should be reported under the appropriate subcategory in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: A will deals with the disposition of property left by a decedent (that is, his estate) according to instructions in an instrument executed by that person before his death, in a manner prescribed by statute. Statutes also require that the validity of the will be established by a legal proceeding called probate.

In cases where the decedent has not made a will (has died intestate), the court determines the disposition of the decedent's estate.

Probate of wills is not reported in some states as a court case, rather as a ministerial action. The distinction should be made in **caseload inventory** between informal proceedings ("those conducted without notice to interested persons by an officer of the court acting as a registrar for the probate of a will or appointment of a personal representative," Uniform Probate Code) and formal proceedings ("those conducted before a judge with notice to interested parties," Uniform Probate Code). Some states do not report informal proceedings as cases.

Statistics should also indicate contested court hearings as opposed to uncontested probate actions. These will appear under manner of disposition as uncontested/default or trial (contested).

# PRODUCT LIABILITY TORT CASE A subcategory of tort case that includes cases involving the alleged responsibility of the manufacturer or seller of an article for an injury caused to person or property by a defect in or condition of the article sold, or an alleged breach of duty to provide suitable instructions to prevent injury.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under tort case, as follows:
  - Auto tort case
  - Professional tort case
  - Product liability tort case
  - Other tort case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of product liability tort cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # PROFESSIONAL TORT CASE A subcategory of tort case that includes cases involving charges of malpractice by a person acting in a professional capacity.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under tort case, as follows:
  - Auto tort case
  - Professional tort case
  - Product liability tort case
  - Other tort case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of professional tort cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Examples of persons acting in a professional capacity include doctors, lawyers, architects, engineers, teachers, etc.

PROHIBITION, WRIT OF see extraordinary writ case

PROMISSORY AGREEMENT see contract case

PROPERTY DAMAGE see tort case

PUBLIC INTEREST CASE
see original jurisdiction case

PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION see administrative agency

PUBLIC WRONGS see **criminal case** 

QUIET TITLE see real property rights case

QUO WARRANTO, WRIT OF see extraordinary writ case

REACTIVATED CASE see reopened case

# READY FOR ORAL ARGUMENT OR SUBMISSION For statistical reporting purposes, the status of the pending caselcad when the transcript has been filed and the attorneys have completed the preparation of their legal briefs, but the hearing has not been held or the case submitted to the court.

- In reporting appellate court status of pending caseload data, the following points in case processing should be indicated:
  - Awaiting court reporter's transcript
  - Awaiting appellant's brief
  - Awaiting respondent's brief
  - Ready for oral argument or submission
  - Under advisement
- See age of pending caseload (appellate courts) for a suggested time scale for measuring processing time.
- # REAL PROPERTY RIGHTS CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases arising out of the ownership, use, or disposition of land or real estate.

- Real property rights case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case.
- Case types classified under real property rights include condemnation, eminent domain, quiet title, landlord and tenant, foreclosure, lien, partition, and so forth.
- Count the filing document as a case, not the number of defendants involved.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of real property rights cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The legal remedies sought to protect real property rights can involve both actions at law and suits in equity.

#### RECIPROCAL SUPPORT

see support/custody case

REHEARING REQUEST A petition to a court calling the court's attention to any alleged error, omission, or oversight occurring during a trial or review, or to any newly discovered evidence, requesting the court to reconsider its own decision.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- For reporting purposes, such requests should not be counted as **cases** because these requests are addressed to the judges' discretion, usually without a formal hearing.

Annotation: The court has broad discretion whether to grant or deny a request for a rehearing.

#### REINSTATED

see reopened case

# REMANDED A decision by an appellate court that sends part or all of a case back to the original trial court or administrative agency from which it came, for the purpose of entry of a proper judgment or decision, further proceedings, or a new trial.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Indicate the kind of appellate decision under each of the following subcategories of manner of disposition, appellate court case, as appropriate:

- Opinion
- Memorandum decision
- Order
- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - · Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - Granted/denied
- For statistical reporting purposes, a remanded case should be considered a **reopened case** in the **trial court**.

Annotation: Any part or all of the judgment being appealed may be remanded. Reversed and remanded is a decision in which the appellate court sets aside the judgment rendered in the trial court or administrative agency and the case must go back to the trial court for further proceedings. Affirmed and remanded is a decision that requires further proceedings by the trial court or administrative agency as directed by the reviewing court; classify under remanded.

RENT CONTROL BOARD

see administrative agency

# REOPENED CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a case that has been reported previously as disposed, but is resubmitted to a court.

Synonym: reinstated case, reactivated case

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Count a reopened case as a new case. Classify by the subject matter at issue in the case. Refer to page 6 for the trial court case classification scheme.

Annotation: Reopened cases can be of several kinds. For
example:

- 1. A dormant case that has been placed on an inactive status can be reactivated. For example, this would happen when an accused fugitive is located and brought into court.
- 2. A case that has been disposed without judicial action (submitted to arbitation, for example) can be returned to the court for judicial action.
- 3. A new issue can arise that causes a disposed case to be resubmitted to the court. Marriage dissolution cases, for example, can be reopened in order to consider requests for changes in support or alimony payments; the reopened case should be classified as a support/custody case. In juvenile cases some of the matters that might lead to the reopening of a case include probation revocation and commit-

ment, postdispositional review of status, writ of habeas corpus, modification or revocation of original commitment, transfer to a more restrictive correctional institution.

4. For statistical reporting purposes, a case remanded from an appellate court to a trial court or administrative agency should be considered a reopened case.

See other manner of disposition, both civil cases and criminal cases, for other types of cases that are likely to be reported as disposed, and later reopened.

Individual states will probably want to maintain some count of reopened cases in their internal statistics.

#### REPLEVIN

see other civil case

# REQUEST TO APPEAL CASE An appellate court case category in which a petition is presented to an appellate court asking the court to review the judgment of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court.

Synonym: application for appeal/review, application for leave to appeal, petition for appeal/review, petition for writ of certiorari, petition for writ of error.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Request to appeal case is a subcategory of the larger class-ification, appellate court case.
- As state information needs require, report the caseload inventory of requests to appeal according to the subject matter of the case involved, using the following subcategories:
  - Civil case request to appeal

Tort case request to appeal
Contract case request to appeal
Real property rights case request to appeal
Small claims case request to appeal
Domestic relations case request to appeal
Mental health case request to appeal
Estate case request to appeal
Other civil case request to appeal

- Criminal case request to appeal
   Felony case request to appeal
   Misdemeanor case request to appeal
   Ordinance violation case request to appeal
   Traffic case request to appeal
   Other criminal case request to appeal
- Postconviction remedy case request to appeal
- e Request to appeal of administrative agency case
- Juvenile case request to appeal

- The usual method of filing a request to appeal is a **peti- tion**, which may be **granted** or **denied** at the discretion of the court. Requests denied should be reported separately from requests granted for review as an **appeal**. Additionally, report a new filing under **appeals** for those requests granted.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of requests to appeal should be reported as granted/denied.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: The authority given to appellate courts determines what kinds of cases must be heard and what kinds of cases may be heard at the discretion of the court. This varies from state to state. A right of appeal differs from a request to appeal. A right of appeal is provided in certain kinds of cases; a request to appeal is granted or denied at the discretion of the court.

Requests to appeal are the method of presenting a case to an appellate court when the case is within the court's discretion. A court's discretion is exercised through a two-stage decisional process. First, the court must decide whether to grant the petition. The criteria used vary greatly: In some courts the major criterion is the correctness of the ruling of the trial court; in others it is the importance of the issues presented.

If the request to appeal is granted, the case generally is subject to the second stage of the decisional process: It becomes an appeal and is decided on the merits. This stage almost always involves a much more extensive study of the case by judges than the request to appeal stage.

#### RESPONDENT

see defendant

# REVERSED A decision by an appellate court that sets aside a judgment or order of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Indicate the kind of appellate decision under each of the following subcategories of manner of disposition, appellate court case, as appropriate:

- Opinion
- e Memorandum decision
- Order
- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - s Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - e Granted/denied
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: An appellate court can either affirm, reverse, or modify the trial court or administrative agency judgment or intermediate appellate court decision, or portions thereof. It can also remand the case back to the trial court or administrative agency for further action.

A case can be reversed and dismissed, reversed and discharged, reversed in part and affirmed in part, etc. All of these can be classified as reversed.

REVERSED AND DISCHARGED see reversed

# REVERSED AND REMANDED A decision by an appellate court that sets aside a judgment or an order of a trial court, an administrative agency, or an intermediate appellate court, and sends part or all of a case back to the original trial court or administrative agency from which it came, for the purpose of entry of a proper judgment, further proceedings, or a new trial.

- Indicate the kind of appellate decision under each of the following subcategories of manner of disposition, appellate court case, as appropriate:
  - Opinion
  - Memorandum decision
  - Order
- Indicate the type of decision in each case as follows:
  - Affirmed
  - Modified
  - Reversed
  - Reversed and remanded
  - Remanded
  - Granted/denied

- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Any part or all of the judgment being appealed may be remanded. Reversed and remanded is a decision in which the appellate court sets aside the judgment rendered in the trial court or administrative agency and the case must go back to the trial court or administrative agency for further proceedings.

# SENTENCE REVIEW ONLY CASE For statistical reporting purposes, a case category for a procedure (other than appeal or request to appeal) whereby the appropriateness of the sentence given to a convicted offender may be challenged.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- At the appellate court level, classify the caseload inventory of sentence review only cases as a separate case category under appellate court case.
- At the trial court level, classify the caseload of sentence review only cases as a subcategory under criminal case.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of a sentence review only case at the trial court level should be reported under other manner of disposition; at the appellate level, under affirmed or modified by order.
- If the case deals only with sentence review, then classify it as a sentence review only case. If the case is an appeal on the merits, then it should be classified as a criminal case appeal.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

SENTENCE WITHHELD see conviction

SEPARATE MAINTENANCE see support/custody case

# SETTLEMENT For statistical reporting purposes, the termination before trial of a case by agreement between or among the parties involved.

- Classify under dismissed/withdrawn/settled in civil cases in trial courts and in appellate courts.
- Settlement during trial should be counted under trial.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- SEVERANCE In trial court criminal proceedings, the separation for purposes of pleading or trial of multiple defendants named in a single filing document (charging document in criminal cases; petition or complaint in civil cases), or of multiple complaints or charges against a particular defendant listed in a single filing document.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- If severance is ordered in a multiple-defendant case, maintain the original case and count each severed defendant as a new filing in a separate case. If complaints or charges are severed, count each new or severed filing document as a new case filing. (See criminal case.)

# SIGNED OPINION see opinion

\* SMALL CLAIMS CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases governed by special summary procedures specified by statute, involving either tort or contract or real property rights claims in which the remedy sought is a specific, limited amount of monetary damages.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Small claims case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of small claims cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: States generally have special summary procedures to be followed in small claims cases, which dispense with written pleadings, legal counsel, or strict rules of evidence. The procedures are typically informal, and less costly and protracted than ordinary procedures.

Small claims cases may be handled in the regular general jurisdiction courts, or in a separate division of a court of general or limited jurisdiction, or in a court of special jurisdiction.

SPECIAL JURISDICTION COURT
see court of limited or special jurisdiction

# STATUS OFFENDER CASE A juvenile case category that includes cases involving a juvenile whom a court has determined to need guiadance, treatment, or rehabilitation because of non-criminal misbehavior by the child.

Synonym: child in need of supervision case (CINS, CHINS), person in need of supervision case (PINS), juvenile in need of supervision case (JINS), minor in need of supervision case (MINS).

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Status offender case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification juvenile case. See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of juvenile cases according to the following subcategories:
  - Criminal-type offender case
  - Status offender case
  - Non-offender case
  - Other juvenile matters
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: This case category has been adopted from the classifications used by the OJJDP in the Department of Justice.

For reporting purposes this case category subsumes several categories now in use in many states, variously called CHINS or CINS (child in need of supervision), PINS (person in need of supervision), MINS (minor in need of supervision), JINS (juvenile in need of supervision), "child beyond control," "incorrigible," "wayward youth," "miscreant," etc. The category deals with the child who requires guidance, treatment, or rehabilitation because of (a) habitual truancy from school; (b) habitual disobedience, being ungovernable, and beyond control of the person having custody of the child without substantial fault on the part of that person; (c) deportment that is injurious or endangers the child or others; or (d) commitment of an offense applicable only to children.

\* STATUS OF PENDING CASELOAD (appellate court) For statistical reporting purposes, the number of appellate cases that have reached the important processing events between their filing and disposition.

Court Statistical Usage:

- In reporting appellate court status of pending caseload data, the following events in case processing should be indicated in order to permit a count of the number of cases in that status:
  - Awaiting court reporter's transcript
  - Awaiting appellant's brief
  - Awaiting respondent's brief
  - e Ready for oral argument or submission
  - Under advisement
- See age of pending caseload (appellate courts) for a suggested time scale for case processing time.

STATUS OF PENDING CASELOAD (trial court) see age of pending caseload (trial court)

STRICKEN One method by which a court removes a case from the record or docket.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Count under dismissed/nolle prosequi for criminal cases and traffic cases in trial courts, and under dismissed/with-drawn/settled for civil cases in trial courts.
- SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION For statistical reporting purposes, the identification of a court action according to the nature of the issue in the case.

# Court Statistical Usage:

- Report all court cases according to the subject matter at issue in the case, as indicated in the classification schemes on pages 5 and 6. The kind of remedy sought and the separate procedural steps in case processing are supplementary information that can be reported in addition, if the court desires.

SUIT IN EQUITY see equity case

SUMMARY PROCEDURE A method by which a case or controversy is decided by a court in a prompt, simple manner without the aid of a jury, on an agreed or stipulated set of facts (as in summary judgment).

Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify cases that are settled by summary procedure according to the subject matter at issue. (See civil case.)

Annotation: Commonly used in cases such as bankruptey proceedings, landlord-tenant cases, small claims, or unlawful entry and detainer, and in cases submitted to arbitration.

# SUPPORT/CUSTODY CASE A subcategory of domestic relations case that includes cases filed to request a court to require maintenance of a spouse or child by a person who is required by law (either state statutes or the Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act) to provide such maintenance, or to request a court to make a determination regarding the control, care, or maintenance of a child.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify in trial court caseload inventory as a subheading under demestic relations case, as follows:
  - Marriage dissolution case
  - Support/custody case
  - Adoption case
  - Other domestic relations case
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of support/custody cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: URESA is the acronym for the Uniform Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act.

Ordinary support cases are those actions involving parties residing in the same state. URESA cases involve a plaintiff and defendant residing in different states, and are of two types: those where the defendant resides within the state and the plaintiff in another (often called "reciprocal support—in,") and those where the plaintiff resides within the state but the defendant resides in another state ("reciprocal support—out").

Marriage dissolution cases will include provisions for custody, support, alimony, and the like in the decree or judgment. If later issues arise and are brought back into the court, these **reopened cases** should be classified according to subject matter, such as **support/custody**, a separate subcategory of domestic relations case.

TAX ASSESSMENT COUNCIL see administrative agency

TERMINATION

see manner of disposition

TERMINATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS
see other domestic relations case

TESTATE

see probate/wills/intestate case

# TIME INTERVAL DATA For statistical reporting purposes, the number of days (mean or median) required to process disposed cases, segmented according to important processing events.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- The time it takes to process cases should be reported for all cases, by case category. States should also preserve the date of key intermediate steps in case processing, and should define the particular nomenclature used for such intermediate steps. (See status of pending caseload.)
- The mean, or average, time to process cases should be reported as well as the median (time it takes to process the "middle" case).

TIME TO DISPOSITION DATA see time interval data

# TORT CASE A major classification category for civil cases that includes cases involving a court action resulting from an injury or wrong committed either against a person or against a person's property by a party who either did something that he was obligated not to do, or failed to do something that he was obligated to do.

- Tort case is a subcategory of the broad trial court classification civil case. See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- Report the **caseload inventory** of tort cases in the following subcategories:
  - Auto tort case
  - Professional tort case
  - Product liability tort case
  - Other tort case

- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of tort cases should be reported under the appropriate category in the civil case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Under the law of torts, an individual is entitled to be free from bodily injury, property injury, injury to his reputation, injury to his rights or privacy, or from interference with his business or right to make a living.

Three elements of every tort action are: existence of a legal duty from defendant to plaintiff, breach of duty, and damage as a proximate result.

Alienation of affection and loss of consortium are tort cases, and would be classified under other tort case.

# TRAFFIC CASE A broad classification category for trial court caseload that includes cases involving an alleged violation of the traffic laws.

Synonym: traffic action

- Traffic cases should be reported separately from the other broad trial court case categories (civil, criminal, juvenile) because of the specialized case processing procedures involved, and to avoid inflation of criminal caseload figures because of the high volume of traffic cases.
- Use the following subcategories to report the caseload inventory of traffic cases:
  - DWI/DUI case
  - Other traffic violation case
  - Parking violation case
- Count each original charging document filed as one traffic case. If the charging document contains multiple defendants, then also count the defendants for internal purposes. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.
- When a state classifies a traffic case as a **felony**, it should be reported as a **felony case** rather than as a traffic case. Traffic cases that are misdemeanors should be classified as **traffic cases**, under the subheadings above.
- Report all traffic violations other than DWI/DUI and parking violations as **other traffic violations**.
- Report parking violations separately. The charging document is typically a citation, and the punishment is a fine, usually paid by mail or without a mandatory court appearance.

- Juvenile traffic cases should be classified under traffic cases, not under juvenile cases.
- Traffic case appeals should be classified under **criminal** case appeals.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the number and type of trials and the disposition of the defendants should be reported under the appropriate category in the traffic case manner of disposition scheme.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

TRAFFIC CASE APPEAL see criminal case appeal

# TRAFFIC CASE MANNER OF DISPOSITION The manner in which a traffic case pending before a trial court is disposed.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report total traffic case dispositions by case category in caseload inventory: beginning pending (cases), filings, dispositions, end pending (cases).
- Report the manner of disposition of traffic cases in trial courts as follows:
  - Jury trial

Conviction (include guilty pleas during trial)
Acquittal (include dismissals during trial)

• Non-jury trial

Conviction (include guilty pleas during trial)
Acquittal (include dismissals during trial)

- Transferred (before/during trial)
- Guilty plea (before trial)
- Bail forfeiture
- Dismissed/nolle prosequi (before trial)
- Parking fines
- Other manner of disposition
- The statistics in the subcategories under traffic case manner of disposition should indicate the number and type of trials and the disposition of the defendants. (See prototype on page 111).
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

# TRANSFERRED For statistical reporting purposes, a manner of disposition in which a judicial order transfers a case from one court to another before hearing or trial in trial courts, and before a decision in appellate courts.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify as a manner of disposition in appellate court cases.

  A new filing should be reported in the court to which the case is transferred.
- Classify as a manner of disposition in trial court cases.
- In order to preserve trial data, report two counts for transferred cases: one for those transferred before trial begins, and one for those transferred during trial.
- In criminal cases and traffic cases, transferred should indicate a count of **defendants**.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: Examples of transferred cases are a juvenile case moved from a juvenile court to an adult criminal court, a case shifted from a limited jurisdiction court to a general jurisdiction court because the defendant exercises his right to demand a jury trial, a general jurisdiction court case moved to a federal district court, an appellate court case moved from one appellate court to another, etc.

Also included under transferred cases are such dispositions as change of venue.

# TREND DATA For statistical reporting purposes, caseload data for periods longer than one reporting period.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Caseload should be reported, by case category, for at least a five- and preferably a ten-year period in order to add perspective to case **filing** and **disposition** data and to help the user identify "bumps" in **time interval data**.
- \* TRIAL The hearing and determination of issues of fact and law, in accordance with prescribed legal procedures, in order to reach a judgment in a case before a court. In a civil case, the rights and liabilities of the parties involved are determined. In a criminal case, the guilt or innocence of the defendant is determined.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report complete trial data when the judgement is reached, including the verdict reached, as indicated under criminal case and traffic case manner of disposition. In criminal cases and traffic cases trial data will apply to cases, whereas verdict data will give a defendant count.

- Specify the type of trial: jury or non-jury. In civil cases this is the only data required for nationwide statistics.
- Count the beginning of a jury trial at the point when the jury has been sworn and the first evidence introduced. Count the beginning of a non-jury trial at the point when the first evidence is introduced.
- Count a trial once it is begun, regardless of whether a judgment is reached.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.
- # TRIAL COURT A court, the primary function of which is to decide cases. (See trial, court of general jurisdiction, court of limited or special jurisdiction.)

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify all courts of gameral jurisdiction and courts of limited or special jurisdiction as trial courts. Identify each court by name and subject matter jurisdiction.

Annotation: For all trial court case categories recommended herein, the term trial court includes both courts of general jurisdiction and courts of limited or special jurisdiction (unless otherwise indicated).

In addition to having original jurisdiction, trial courts in many states also have incidental appellate jurisdiction (see incidental appellate jurisdiction).

# TRIAL COURT CASE A major classification category for caseload in courts of general jurisdiction and courts of limited or special jurisdiction that includes civil case, criminal case, traffic case, and juvenile case as broad subcategories. (See civil case, criminal case, traffic case, juvenile case).

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Classify trial court caseload inventory according to the subject matter at issue in the case, using the following categories:
  - Civil case

Tort case
Auto tort case
Professional tort case
Product liability tort case
Other tort case
Contract case
Real property rights case
Small claims case

Domestic relations case

Marriage dissolution case
Support/custody case
Adoption case
Other domestic relations case
Mental health case
Estate case

Probate/wills/intestate case

Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case

Other estate case

Appeal case

Appeal of administrative agency case Appeal of trial court case Extraordinary writ case

Postconviction remedy case

Other civil case

• Criminal case

Felony case

Misdemeanor case

Preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only) Ordinance (non-traffic) violation case

Appeal case

Appeal of trial court case Extraordinary writ case Postconviction remedy case Sentence review only case Other criminal case

• Traffic case

DWI/DUI case

Other traffic violation case

Parking violation case

• Juvenile case

Criminal-type offender case Status offender case Non-offender case Other juvenile matters

- See unit of count for instructions on counting cases.
- In addition to the reporting of filings, dispositions, and pending cases in caseload inventory, the termination of trial court cases should be reported in the appropriate category under manner of disposition, trial court case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

TRIAL COURT CASELOAD INVENTORY
see court caseload inventory
trial court case

TRIAL DE NOVO A trial in which an appeal from a trial court is heard in a trial court as a completely new hearing of the case.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Count trial de novo as a manner of disposition in civil cases, criminal cases, and traffic cases under jury trial or non-jury trial. States may report a separate subheading under jury trials and non-jury trials if tracking trials de novo provides useful information.
- Trials de novo should be counted at the time of the filing of the appeal in the trial court having incidental appellate jurisdiction.

Annotation: Trial de novo is not a synonym for new trial or retrial.

Generally a trial de novo takes place in a trial court that is empowered by statute to review judgments of courts of limited jurisdiction. The lower court in some states is not a court of record and so has no transcript to submit as the basis for appellate review. In this situation, an appeal heard in the trial court becomes a trial de novo.

Trials de novo may be provided in other states from courts of record. (See court of record). When trials de novo are provided in this situation, a verbatim transcript of the first trial is not generally used, even though the first trial took place in a court of record. Still, the transcript of the judgment from the first court can be used by the trial court hearing the appeal on the basis of its being accepted as a record.

Some states have abolished trials de novo.

#### TRUSTEE, TRUSTEESHIP

see guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case

# UNCONTESTED/DEFAULT For statistical reporting purposes, a category for reporting the manner of disposition of a civil case in which a defendant either chose not to, or failed to contest the plaintiff's allegation.

- Classify as a trial court manner of disposition in civil cases.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

# UNDER ADVISEMENT For statistical reporting purposes, the status of the pending caseload when the oral argument or hearing has been held or the case has been submitted to the court, but the court has not disposed of the case.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- In reporting appellate court status of pending caseload data, the following points in case processing should be indicated:
  - Awaiting court reporter's transcript
  - · Awaiting appellant's brief
  - Awaiting respondent's brief
  - · Ready for oral argument or submission
  - Under advisement
- See age of pending caseload (appellate courts) for a suggested time scale for measuring case processing time.

UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE see contract case

UNIFORM TRAFFIC CITATION see complaint, traffic traffic case

UNIT OF COUNT Any entity that is the basis for monitoring and reporting statistics by a court.

- Although unit of count is not itself a statistical term, the units being counted determine statistical terms.
- Count the filing with the clerk of court of a complaint or petition as the beginning of civil cases and of juvenile cases in trial courts.
- Count the filing of the original charging document (complaint, information, or indictment in criminal or traffic cases; complaint, petition, or information in juvenile cases of a criminal nature) as the beginning of the case in trial courts. Count multiple charges against one defendant as one case. Count each charging document.
- If there is more than one **defendant** on a charging document, also count defendants for internal purposes, both at the time of filing and at the time of disposition. Report both case and defendant dispositions in caseload inventory.
- A count of what happened to the defendant(s) should appear under criminal case manner of disposition and traffic case manner of disposition.
- See consolidated trial and severance for further instructions.

- In appellate courts count the notice of appeal in an appeal case when it is filed in the appellate court.
- Count the petition in a request to appeal case or an original jurisdiction case.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: If motions and other steps in case processing are being counted, they should be reported separately from caseload inventory as part of caseflow. (See court caseflow.)

#### **URESA**

see support/custody case

VERDICT In criminal proceedings, the decision of the jury in a jury trial or of a judicial officer in a non-jury trial, that the defendant is guilty or not guilty of the offense for which he has been tried. (adapted from the <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, second edition)

In civil proceedings, the decision of a jury or of a judicial officer concerning the matters at issue in the trial of a lawsuit.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Report the kinds of **verdicts** in **criminal cases** and in **traf**-**fic cases** as indicated under **manner of disposition** (page 8).

  These should indicate a **defendant** count.
- In civil cases report only the terminations indicated under civil case manner of disposition (page 8). These will indicate a case count.

#### WAYWARD YOUTH

see status offender case

#### WILLS

see probate/wills/intestate case

# WITHDRAWN For statistical reporting purposes, a manner of disposition for reporting cases that were formally filed in a court, but were withdrawn from the court by the plaintiff before the hearing or trial in trial courts, and before decision in appellate courts.

- Classify as a manner of disposition in appellate court cases as follows:
  - Dismissed/withdrawn/settled

- Classify as a **civil case** manner of disposition in trial court cases up to the point the trial begins. After a trial begins, count the **trial** as the manner of disposition.
- See pages 5-10 for case category classifications, manner of disposition, and prototypes for displaying both. For your convenience, these prototypes are also found on a foldout at page 111.

Annotation: At the trial court level, withdrawn has the same meaning for civil cases as nolle prosequi has for criminal cases.

WITH/WITHOUT PREJUDICE

see dismissal

WORKLOAD, COURT All matters, including caseload, handled by a court that involve time and effort.

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- Do not use as a synonym for caseload.
- Accurate measures of court workload require the reporting of these activities in addition to, and separate from, court caseload. Although this dictionary has not yet addressed any scheme for reporting court workload, each state will need to plan an appropriate format for reporting the workload handled by the courts.

Annotation: In addition to handling caseload, court time is consumed in a great many other activities related to judicial office, including swearing in of other judges and officials, conferences, research, presiding over marriage ceremonies, correspondence, moot court, addressing civic and school groups, and so on.

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION BOARD see administrative agency

WRIT A written court order directed to a specific person, requiring that person to perform or refrain from performing a specific act.

Synonym: process, court order

#### Court Statistical Usage:

- If a writ is requested as a step in the processing of a case, it should not be counted in caseload statistics. If a petition for a writ is the subject of a case, then that case should be classified as an extraordinary writ case in trial court caseflow, and as an original jurisdiction case in appellate court caseflow, except for writ of certiorari and writ of error, which are classified as requests to appeal.

WRIT OF CERTIORARI
see request to appeal case

WRIT OF ERROR see request to appeal case

WRIT OF ERROR CORAM NOBIS
see extraordinary writ case

WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
see extraordinary writ case
original jurisdiction case
postconviction remedy case

WRIT OF MANDAMUS
see extraordinary writ case
original jurisdiction case

WRIT OF PROHIBITION
see extraordinary writ case
original jurisdiction case

WRIT OF QUO WARRANTO
see extraordinary writ case
original jurisdiction case

WRONGFUL DEATH
see tort case
auto tort case
professional tort case
product liability tort case

ZONING BOARD see administrative agency

#### rototype 111

Ø 19

## STATE SAME, COURT NAME Court of last reset or intermediate appellate court Humber of court divisions, Number of judges Time period covered

Court caseload inventory	Beginning pending	Piled	Disposed	End pending
Cases: Request to appeal case Civil case request to appeal Crisinal case request to appeal Postconviction remady case request to appeal Request to appeal of administrative agency case Juvenile case request to appeal Sentence review only case Total				
Appeal case  Civil case appeal (mandatory)				
Total  Original proceeding case Original prindiction case Disciplinary matter Advisory opinion case Total				

#### Manner of disposition, appellate court cases -- civil/criminal

Total cases .....

Opinion [number of opinions]	00
Affirmed [number of cases]	00
Modified [number of cases]	00
Reversed [number of cases]	00
Reversed and remanded [number of cases]	00
Remanded [number of cases]	00
Granted/denied [number of cases]	00/00
Memorandum decision [number of memorandum decisions]	00
Affirmed [number of cases]	00
Modified [number of cases]	00
Reversed [number of cases]	00
Reversed and remanded [number of cases]	00
Remanded [number of cases]	00
Granted/denied [number of cases]	00/00
Order (decision without opinion) [number of orders]	00
Affirmed [number of cases]	00
Modified [number of cases]	00
Reversed [number of cases]	00/00
Reversed and remanded [number of cases]	00
Remanded [number of cases]	00
Granted/denied [number of cases]	00/00
Dismissed/withdrawn/settled [number of cases]	
Transferred [number of cases]	00
Other manner of disposition [number of cases]	00

## STATE MANN, COURT MANN. Court of general jurisdiction or court of limited jurisdiction Mumber of circuits or districts, Number of judges

Court caseload inventory  Civil case  Tort case  Auto tort case  Professional tort case  Product liability tort case  Contract case  Real property rights case  Small claims case  Domestic relations case  Marriage dissolution case		<b>C41 65</b>		Defendants	pend
Tort case Auto tort case Product liability tort case Product liability tort case Contract case Real property rights case Small claims case Domestic relations case		1			
Auto tort case Professional tort case Product liability tort case Other tort case Contract case Real property rights case Small claims case Domestic relations case		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Professional text case Product liability text case Other text case Real property rights case Small claims case Demostic relations case		6			
Other tort case Contract case Real property rights case Small claims case Domestic relations case	•	6	134		
Contract case  Real property rights case  Domestic relations case	•	1,		. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Real property rights case					
Small claims case					
Domestic relations case		• •		<u></u>	e selection
MELLINGS GIRBOIGITON CORE ANGLISTICATION CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CORE	•				
Support/custody case	•				
Adoption case					
Mental health case	•				
Estate case				41	
Probate/wills/intestate case	,			·	
Guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case					
Other estate case					
Appeal case				==	
Appeal of trial court case					
Extraordinary writ case	•		•		
Postconviction remedy case	,				
Other civil case	1	4 4			
Atal adudi				:	
otal civil	•				43
iminal case					
Felony case	,				
Misdemeanor case	•			16.	
Preliminary hearing (limited jurisdiction court only)	•			1	
Ordinance violation case					
Appeal of trial court case					
Extraordinary writ case	•				
Postconviction remedy case		•			
Sentence review only case					
Other criminal case	•				
Total criminal	_				
raffic case					
Other traffic violation	•				
Other traffic violation					
	•				
otal traffic	•,				
uvenile case			*		1
Criminal-type offender case				and the second	
Status offender case					
Other juvenile matters					
•					
otal juvenile	•		,	. •	
				<del></del>	
and total					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				:	
Manner of dis	sposition, tr	ial court cases			
			•		
vil case manner of disposition Criminal manner	àf dianosiei	On	Traffic	mer of disposition	
		OR	Jury tri	al [cases]	
		}	Convi	ction [defendants]	
Uncontested/default [cases] Guilty ;	lea	*********	Acqui	ttal [defendants]	
			Non-jury	trial [defendants]	
Transferred [cases]	td	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Convi	ction [defendants]	
Arbit artion [cases]	IL [CASES]	,	Acqui	ttal [defendants]	* * * * * * *
	i (derendants	1	Guiles e	red [defendants] les [defendants]	
Acquittal	[defendante]	*************	Reil for	feiture [defendants]	
Dismiss	ba		Dismisse	d/nolle prosequi [de	
		[defendants]		fines [defendants]	
Bound over [c	iefendants] .	****************	Other ma	nner of disposition	

i case manner of disposition	Criminal manner of disposition	Traffic manner
ry trial [cases]	Jury trial [cases]	Jury trial
on-jury trial [cases]	Conviction [defendants]	Convicti
ncontested/default [cases]	Guilty plea	Acquittel
ismissed/withdrawn/settled [cases]	Acquittal [defendants]	Non-jury tri
ensferred [cases]	Dismissed	Conviction
rbickation [cases]	Non-jury trial [cases]	Acquittal
ther manner of disposition [cases]	Conviction [defendants]	Transferred
	Guilty plea	Guilty plea
	Acquittal [defendants]	Bail forfeit
the state of the s	Dismissed	Dismissed/no
	Dismissed/nolle prosequi [defendants]	Parking fine
	Bound over [defendants]	Other manner
	Transferred [defendants]	
	Guilty pleas [defendants]	
	Bail forfeiture [defendants]	•
	Other manner of disposition [defendants]	
•		

### **Bibliography**

#### Dictionary sources:

- Auerbach Associates, Inc., <u>Criminal Justice Glossary</u> (Draft II, unpublished)
- Ballentine, James A., <u>Ballentine's Law Dictionary</u> (San Francisco, California: Bancroft-Whitney Co., 1969)
- Black, Henry Campbell, <u>Black's Law Dictionary</u> (St. Paul, Minnesota: West Publishing Co., 1968)
- Fricke, Charles W., 5000 Criminal Definitions (Los Angeles, California: Legal Book Corporation, 1968)
- Gilmer, Wesley, <u>Cochran's Law Dictionary</u> (Cincinnati, Ohio: The W.H. Anderson Company, 1973)
- National Criminal Justice Information and Statistics Service,

  <u>Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology</u>, First

  <u>Edition</u> (Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing

  Office, 1976); Second edition [1980]
- Radin, Max, Radin Law Dictionary (Dobbs Ferry, New York: Oceana Publications, Inc., 1970)
- Shapiro, Irving, <u>Dictionary of Legal Terms</u> (Jamaica, New York: Gould, 1969)

#### Glossary sources:

- Administrative Office of the United States Courts, Glossary of Terms Used in the Federal Courts (July 1975)
- Alameda County Municipal Court Training Project, <u>Municipal Court</u>
  <u>Clerk Glossary</u> (California Office of Criminal Justice
  Planning)
- American Academy of Judicial Education, <u>Glossary</u> (of legal terms commonly used in courts of limited jurisdiction)
- American Bar Association, Law and the Courts
- American Judicature Society and National Center for State Courts, Citizens' Handbook on Maine Courts
- Institute of Judicial Administration (Fannie J. Klein), <u>A Guide</u>
  to Court Systems (New York: Institute of Judicial
  Administration, 1966)

- Indiana State Bar Association, Handbook for Indiana Jurors
- Krogfoss, Robert B. (ed.), <u>Manual for the Legal Secretarial</u>
  Profession (St. Paul, Minnesota: West Publishing Co., 1965)
- Michigan Judicial Institute, Handbook of Legal Terms
- National College for Juvenile Justice, <u>Glossary of Selected</u> <u>Legal Terms for Juvenile Justice Personnel</u>
- Office of Continuing Education for State Court Personnel, <u>Clerk</u> of Court Manual, Appendix A (Legal Terminology), Supreme Court of Minnesota
- Oregon Judicial College, Handbook of Legal Terms

#### Other sources:

- American Bar Association Task Force on Appellate Procedure, <u>Efficiency and Justice in Appeals: Methods and Selected</u> <u>Materials</u> (Chicago: ABA, 1978)
- Advisory Council for Appellate Justice, Appellate Justice:

  1975, Volume III: Criminal Justice on Appeal (National Center for State Courts and the Federal Judicial Center, 1975)
- Appellate Statistics Committee, ABA Appellate Judges'
  Conference, Proposed Standards for Appellate Court
  Statistics (Denver: National Center for State Courts, 1973)
- Klein, Fannie J., <u>Federal and State Court Systems--A Guide</u> (Cambridge, Massachusetts: Ballinger Publishing Company, 1977)
- Leflar, Robert A., <u>Internal Operating Procedures of Appellate</u>
  <u>Courts</u> (Chicago: American Bar Foundation, 1976)
- Martindale--Hubbell Law Directory (Summit, New Jersey: Martindale--Hubbell, Inc., 1980)
- Millar, Robert Wyness, <u>Civil Procedures in the Trial Court in Historical Perspective</u> (New York: The Law Center of New York University for the National Conference of Judicial Councils, 1952)

115

- National Conference of State Trial Judges, <u>The State Trial</u>
  <u>Judge's Book</u>, Second Edition (St. Paul, Minnesota: West Publishing Co., 1969)
- National Court Statistics Project, State Court Caseload

  Statistics: Annual Report, 1975 (Washington, D.C.: U.S.
  Govt. Printing Office, 1979)
- National Court Statistics Project, State Court Caseload
  Statistics: The State of the Art (Washington, D.C.: U.S.
  Govt. Printing Office, 1978)

## Index

Defined terms are in boldface.

Court statistical terms are preceded by #.

Cross-referenced terms are in ordinary type.

		Page
	ABATEMENT BY DEATH OF DEFENDANT	
	see other manner of disposition, criminal case	
	ABSCONDED	
	see other manner of disposition, criminal case	
ŀ	ACQUITTAL	. 11
	ACTION (court)	11
	ACTION AT LAW	
	see law case	
	ACTIVE CALENDAR	
	see <b>calendar</b>	
	ADJUDICATION WITHHELD	
	see conviction	
	ADMINISTRATION OF ESTATES	
	see probate/wills/intestate case	
	ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY	. 12
ŀ	ADOPTION CASE	. 12
	ADVISORY JURY	
	see jury trial	
ŀ	ADVISORY OPINION CASE	. 13
,	AFFIRMED	. 13
	AFFIRMED AND MODIFIED	
	see affirmed	
	AFFIRMED AND REMANDED	
	See remanded	
	AFFIRMED IN PART, REVERSED IN PART	
	see reversed  AGE OF PENDING CASELOAD (appellate courts)	. 14
ľ	AGE OF PENDING CASELOAD (trial courts)	15
•	AGENCY APPEAL	• 49
	see appeal of administrative agency case	
	ALCOHOL, ALCOHOLICS	
	see DWI/DUI	
	mental health case	
	ALIENATION OF AFFECTION	
	see other tort case	
	ALIMONY	
	see support/custody case	
	other domestic relations case	

	ANNULMENT	
	see marriage dissolution case	
#	APPEAL CASE (appellate court)	16
	APPEAL CASE (trial court)	17
	APPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY CASE (appellate courts)	18
ä	APPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY CASE (trial courts)	19
#	ADDRAL OF TOTAL COURT CASE (board in but 1 court)	_
	APPEAL OF TRIAL COURT CASE (heard in trial court)	19
7	APPEAL OF RIGHT/DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	20
	APPELLATE COURT	20
	APPELLATE COURT CASE	21
	APPELLATE COURT CASELOAD INVENTORY	
	see court caseload inventory	
	appellate court case	
	APPLICATION FOR APPEAL/REVIEW	
	see request to appeal case	
	APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL	
	see request to appeal case	
	ARBITRATION	
•		22
	AUTOMOBILE NEGLIGENCE	
٠.	see auto tort case	
	AUTO TORT CASE	22
#	AWAITING APPELLANT'S BRIEF	23
#	AWAITING COURT REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT	23
#	AWAITING RESPONDENT'S BRIEF	24
	BAIL FORFEITURE	24
	BASTARDY	
	see other domestic relations case	
#	BEGINNING PENDING (cases)	25
-	BENCH TRIAL	25
	see non-jury trial	
	BIND OVER	
	see bound over	
#	BOUND OVER	25
	BREACH OF CONTRACT	
,	see <b>contract case</b>	
	CALENDAR	25
	CASE	
	see <b>court case</b>	
	CASEFLOW	
	see court caseflow	
	CASELOAD	
	see court caseload	
	CASELOAD INVENTORY	
	see court caseload inventory	
	CERTIFIED QUESTION	
	see advisory opinion case	
	CERTIFIED TO AN ADULT COURT	
	see criminal-type offender case	

CERTIORARI, WRIT OF								
see request to appeal case								
writ								
CHANCERY								
see equity								
CHANGE OF VENUE						_		26
CHARGING DOCUMENT	•	•	•	•	•	-	•	
see complaint, criminal								
complaint, traffic								
filing								
information								
indictment								
unit of count								
CHILD ABUSE, ABANDONMENT								
see <b>non-offender case</b>								
CHILD BEYOND CONTROL								
see <b>status offender caze</b>								
CHILD IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (CHINS, CINS)								
status offender case								
CHILD MARRIAGE								
see other juvenile matter								
<b>▼</b>								
CHINS, CINS, PINS, JINS, MINS								
see status offender case								
CIVIL CASE	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	27
CIVIL CASE APPEAL	• •	•	•	•	٠	•	•	28
CIVIL CASE MANNER OF DISPOSITON		•	•	•	•	•	•	29
CLAIMANT								
see plaintiff								
CO-DEFENDANT								
see <b>defendant</b>								
COMPLAINANT								
see plaintiff								
COMMON LAW			_					29
COMMITMENT, COMMITMENT REVIEW	•	•	•	Ť	•	•	-	_,
see mental health case								
COMPLAINT, CIVIL								30
COMPLAINT, CRIMINAL	• •	9	•	•	•	•	•	_
	• •	•	•	•	٠	•	•	30
COMPLAINT, TRAFFIC	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	31
CONCURRENT JURISDICTION	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	31
CONDEMNATION								
see real property rights case								
CONSERVATOR, CONSERVATORSHIP								
see guardianship/conservatorship/trustee	ide	p (	ca:	<b>3e</b>				
CONSOLIDATED CASE		•	•	•	•	•	•	31
CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUE								
see original jurisdiction case								
CONTRACT CASE			_		_			32
CONTRIBUTING TO DELINQENCY	•	•	•	•	•	٠	-	٠.
see criminal case								
Ti								

	CONTRIBUTING TO DEPENDENCY AND NEGLECT	
	see criminal case	
#	CONVICTION	33
	CORAM NOBIS	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	CORPURATE TRUSTS	
	see other probate case	
	COURT	33
	COURT CASE	34
	COURT CASEFLOW	34
#	COURT CASELOAD	35
	COURT CASELOAD INVENTORY	35
	COURT, INTERMEDIATE APPELLATE	رر
	see intermediate appellate court	
	COURT OF GENERAL JURISDICTION	35
	COURT OF LAST RESORT	
	COURT OF LIMITED OR SPECIAL JURISDICTION	_
	COURT OF RECORD	37
	COURT TRIAL	37
	·	
	see non-jury trial	
	COURT WORKLOAD	
	see workload, court	
	CRIMINAL CASE	37
	CRIMINAL CASE APPEAL	38
#	CRIMINAL CASE MANNER OF DISPOSITION	39
	CRIMINAL NON-SUPPORT	
	see criminal case	1
*	CRIMINAL-TYPE OFFENDER CASE	40
	CUSTODY	
	see support/custody case	
	DEBT	
	see contract case	
	DECEDENT'S ESTATE	
	see probate/wills/intestate case	
	DEFAULT	
_	see noncontested/default	
#	DEPENDANT	41
	DELINQUENCY	
	see criminal-type offender case	
	DENIED	
	see granted/denied	
	DEPENDENCY AND NEGLECT	
	see non-offender case	
	DIRECTED VERDICT TRIAL	
	see jury trial	
#	DISCIPLINARY MATTER	42

	DISCIPLINARY REVIEW BOARD OF A CORRECTIONS AGENCY	
	see administrative agency	
	DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION	
	see mandatory jurisdiction/discretionary jurisdiction	
	DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	
	see appeal of right/discretionary review	
#	DISMISSED	43
	DISMISSED/NOLLE PROSEQUI	43
#	DISMISSED/WITHDRAWN/SETTLED	44
_	DISPOSED	
	see disposition	
#	DISPOSITION	44
	DIVERSION	
	see criminal case manner of disposition	
	other manner of disposition, criminal cases	
	DI YORCE	
	see marriage dissolution case	
#	DOMESTIC RELATIONS CASE	45
	DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE	
	see DWI/DUI case	
	DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED	
	see DWI/DUI case	
	DRUGS	
	see felony	
	misdemeanor	
	DWI/DUI case	
#	DWI/DUI CASE	46
	EMINENT DOMAIN	
	see real property rights case	
#	END PENDING (cases)	46
	ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY	
	see administrative agency	
	EQUITY	47
	EQUITY CASE	47
	ERROR, WRIT OF	
	see request to appeal case	
	writ	
#	ESTATE CASE	48
	EXECUTORS OF ESTATES	
	see probate/wills/intestate case	
	EXTRADITION	
	see other criminal case	
	EXTRAORDINARY REMEDY/RELIEF	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	original jurisdiction case	
	EXTRAORDINARY WRIT (appellate court)	
	see original jurisdiction case	

#	EXTRAORDINARY WRIT CASE (trial court)	49
	see domestic relations case	
#	FELONY CASE	50
	FELONY PRELIMINARY HEARING	
	see preliminary hearing	
	felony	
	FILED	
	see filing	
#	FILING	51
_	FILING DOCUMENT	<b>-</b>
	see complaint, civil	
	complaint, criminal	
	complaint, traffic	
	filing	
	indictment	
	information	
	notice of appeal	
	petition	
	unit of count	
	FORECLOSURE	
	see real property rights case	
	FUGITIVE	
	see other manner of disposition, criminal cases	
	FULL OPINION	
	see opinion	
	GARNISHMENT	52
	GENERAL JURISDICTION COURT	
	see court of general jurisdiction	
	GIFTS TO MINORS	
	see other estate case	
	GRANTED/DENIED	52
#	GUARDIANSHIP/CONSERVATORSHIP/TRUSTEESHIP CASE	53
	GUILTY PLEA BY WAIVER	
	see bail forfeiture	
#	GUILTY PLEA	54
	HABEAS CORPUS, WRIT OF	
	see <b>extraordinary writ case</b>	
	original jurisdiction case	
	postconviction remedy case	
	writ	
	INACTIVE STATUS	
	see other manner of disposition, civil and criminal	
	INCIDENTAL APPELLATE JURISDICTION	55
	INCOMPETENCY	
	see mental health case	

	INCORRIGIBLE CHILD	
	see <b>status offender case</b>	
	INDICTMENT	55
	INFORMATION	56
	INFRACTION	56
	INHERITANCE	
	see probate/wills/intestate case	
	INJUNCTION	57
	INTERLOCUTORY APPEAL	57
	INTERMEDIATE APPELLATE COURT	58
	INTESTATE	
	see probate/wills/intestate case	
	INVENTORY	
	see court caseload inventory	
	JUDGE TRIAL	
	see non-jury trial	_
	JUDGMENT	58
r	JURISDICTION	58
	JURY TRIAL	58
•	JUVENILE CASE	59
•	JUVENILE CASE APPEAL	60
•	JUVENILE CASE DISPOSITION	60
	JUVENILE IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (JINS)	
	see status offender case	
	LANDLORD AND TENANT	
	see real property rights case	<i>-</i> -
	LAW CASE	61
	LEGISLATIVE APPORTIONMENT CASE	
	see original jurisdiction case	
	LICENSING BOARDS	
	see administrative agency	
	LIEN	
	see real property rights case LIMITED JURISDICTION COURT	
	see court of limited or special jurisdiction LOSS OF CONSORTIUM	
	See other tort case	
	MAJORITY OPINION	
	see opinion	
	MAJOR TRIAL COURT	
	See chart of general jurisdiction	
	MALPRACTIVE	
	see professional tort case	
	MANDAMUS, WRIT OF	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	MANDATORY JURISDICTION/DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION	62
ŀ	MANNER OF DISPOSITION, APPELLATE COURT CASE	62

	MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CIVIL CASE
	see civil case manner of disposition
	MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CRIMINAL CASE
	see criminal case manner of disposition
	MANNER OF DISPOSITION, TRAFFIC CASE
•	see traffic case manner of disposition
¥	MANNER OF DISPOSITION, TRIAL COURT CASE 63
	MARRIAGE DISSOLUTION CASE
-	MEAN
	see time interval data
	MEDIAN
	see time interval data
	MEDICAL MALPRACTICE
	see professional tort case
#	MEMORANDUM DECISION
•	MENTAL COMMITMENT OF A MINOR
_	see other juvenile matter MENTAL HEALTH CASE
•	MENTAL ILLNESS
	see mental health case
	MINOR IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (MINS)
	see status offender case
	MISCREANT
_	see status offender case
7	MISDEMEANOR CASE
	MISTRIAL
	see jury trial
₩	MODIFIED
	MOTOR VEHICLE TORT
	see auto tort case
	NAME CHANGE
	see other civil case
	NEGLECT
	see non-offender case
	NEGLIGENCE
	see tort case
_	NEW TRIAL
#	NOLLE PROSEQUI
	NOLO CONTENDERE
_	see guilty plea
	NON-JURY TRIAL
#	NON-OFFENDER CASE
	NON-SUPPORT
	see <b>support/custody case</b>
	other criminal case
	demontte valations asse

	NON VULT CONTENDERE	
	see guilty plea	
	NO PROBABLE CAUSE	
	see preliminary hearing	
	probable cause	
_	NOTICE OF APPEAL	•
_	OPINION	
#		
#		
	ORIGINAL JURISDICTION	
#	ORIGINAL JURISDICTION CASE	74
#	ORIGINAL PROCEEDING CASE	74
#	OTHER CIVIL CASE	75
#	OTHER CRIMINAL CASE	75
	OTHER DOMESTIC RELATIONS CASE	
	OTHER ESTATE CASE	•
	OTHER JUVENILE MATTERS	
	OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, APPELLATE CASES	
	OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CIVIL CASES	•
	OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, CRIMINAL CASES	. 71 . 72 . 73 . 74 . 74 . 75 . 76 . 77 . 78 . 78 . 79 . 80 . 81 . 82
	OTHER MANNER OF DISPOSITION, TRAFFIC CASES	
	OTHER TORT CASE	
	OTHER TRAFFIC VIOLATION CASE	
	PARKING FINES	
₹	PARKING VIOLATION CASE	81
	PAROLE BOARD	
	see administrative agency	
	PARTITION	
	see <b>real property rights case</b>	
	PARTY	82
	PATERNITY	
	see other domestic relations case	
	PAYMENT OF FINE	
	see guilty plea	
	parking fines	
#	PENDING	82
	PER CURIAM OPINION	83
	PERSONAL INJURY	
	see tort case	
	auto tort case	
	professional tort case	
	product liability tort case	
	PERSON IN NEED OF SUPERVISION (PINS)	
	see status offender case	
		0 -
	PETITION	03
	PETITIONER	
	see plaintiff	

	PETITION FOR APPEAL/REVIEW	
	see request to appeal case	
	PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI	
	see request to appeal case	
	PLAINTIFF	84
ŧ	POST CONVICTION REMEDY CASE	84
	POSTTRIAL HEARING (JUVENILE)	
	see criminal-type offender case	
	PRELIMINARY HEARING	85
#	PRELIMINARY HEARING (LIMITED JURISDICTION COURT ONLY)	85
	PREROGATIVE WRIT	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	original jurisdiction case	
	PRETRIAL HEARINGS (JUVENILE)	
	see criminal-type offender case	
	PRIVATE RIGHTS	
	see civil case	
	PROBABLE CAUSE	86
ŧ	PROBATE/WILLS/INTESTATE CASE	87
#	PRODUCT LIABILITY TORT CASE	88
#	PROFESSIONAL TORT CASE	88
	PROHIBITION, WRIT OF	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	PROMISSORY AGREEMENT	
	see contract case	
	PROPERTY DAMAGE	
	see <b>tort case</b>	
	PUBLIC INTEREST CASE	
	see original jurisdiction case	
	PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION	
	see <b>administrative agency</b>	
	PUBLIC WRONGS	
	see criminal case	
	QUIET TITLE	
	see real property rights case	
	QUO WARRANTO, WRIT OF	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	REACTIVATED CASE	
	see <b>reopened case</b>	
	READY FOR ORAL ARGUMENT OR SUBMISSION	89
#	REAL PROPERTY RIGHTS CASE	89
	RECIPROCAL SUPPORT	
	see support/custody case	
	REHEARING REQUEST	90
	REINSTATED	•
	see reconened case	

		7.5.	20,2	I
#	REMANDED			90
w	RENT CONTROL BOARD	•	• •	,,
	see administrative agency			
#	REOPENED CASE			91
¥	REPLEVIN	•	• •	. 74
	see other civil case			
#	REQUEST TO APPEAL CASE			92
#	RESPONDENT	•	• •	72
	see defendant			
×	REVERSED			93
#	REVERSED AND DISCHARGED	•	• •	73
	see reversed			
#	REVERSED AND REMANDED			94
	SENTENCE REVIEW ONLY CASE	•	• •	95
7	SENTENCE WITHHELD	•	• •	90
	see conviction			
	SEPARATE MAINTENANCE			
	see support/custody case			
	SETTLEMENT			95
₩	SEVERANCE	•		96
	SIGNED OPINION	• ,	•	,,
	see opinion	,		
#	SMALL CLAIMS CASE	_		96
	SPECIAL JURISDICTION COURT	•	•	,,,
	see court of limited or special jurisdiction			
#	STATUS OFFENDER CASE			97
	STATUS OF PENDING CASELOAD (appellate court)			98
_	STATUS OF PENDING CASELOAD (trial Court)			-
	see age of pending caseload (trial court)			
	STRICKEN	•		98
	SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION	•		98
	SUIT IN EQUITY			
	see <b>equity case</b>			
	SUMMARY PROCEDURE	•		· 98
#	SUPPORT/CUSTODY CASE	•		99
	TAX ASSESSMENT COUNCIL			
	see administrative agency			
	TERMINATION			
	see manner of disposition			
	TERMINATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS			
	see other domestic relations case			
	TESTATE			
	see probate/wills/intestate case	•		
#	TIME INTERVAL DATA			100
	TIME TO DISPOSITION DATA			
	see time interval data			
	TORT CASE	•		100
#	TRAFFIC CASE	•	• •	101
	TRAFFIC CASE APPEAL			
	see criminal case appeal			

#	TRAFFIC CASE MANNER OF DISPOSITION	102
#	TRANSFERRED	103
#	TREND DATA	103
#	TRIAL	103
	TRIAL COURT	104
	TRIAL COURT CASE	104
-	TRIAL COURT CASELOAD INVENTORY	
	see court caseload inventory	
	trial court case	
	TRIAL DE NOVO	106
	TRUSTEE, TRUSTEESHIP	
	see guardianship/conservatorship/trusteeship case	
#	UNCONTESTED/DEFAULT	106
	UNDER ADVISEMENT	107
•	UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE	101
	see contract case	
	UNIFORM TRAFFIC CITATION	
	see complaint, traffic	
	traffic case	
	UNIT OF COUNT	107
	URES'A	101
	see support/custody case	108
	VERDICT	100
	WAYWARD YOUTH	
	see status offender case	
	WILLS	
	see probate/wills/intestate case	100
#		108
	WITH/WITHOUT PREJUDICE	
	see dismissed	100
	WORKLOAD, COURT	109
	WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION BOARD	
	see administrative agency	* • •
	WRIT	109
	WRIT OF CERTIORARI	
	see request to appeal case	
	WRIT OF ERROR	
	see request to appeal case	
	WRIT OF ERROR CORAM NOBIS	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	original jurisdiction case	
	postconviction remedy case	
	WRIT OF MANDAMUS	
	see extraordinary writ case	
	original jurisdiction case	

WRIT OF PROHIBITION

see extraordinary writ case original jurisdiction case

WRIT OF QUO WARRANTO

see extraordinary writ case original jurisdiction case

WRONGFUL DEATH

see tort case

auto tort case

professional tort case

product liability tort case

ZONING BOARD

see administrative agency

## U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BUREAU OF JUSTICE STATISTICS

## USER EVALUATION State Court Model Statistical Dictionary NCJ-62320, SD-C-7

	Dear Reader:
	User participation is needed to improve and expand future editions of this dictionary. We have provided this form for whatever opinions you wish to express about it. Please cut out both of these pages, staple them together on one corner, and fold so that the Bureau of Justice Statistics address appears on the outside. After folding, use tape to seal closed.
	Thank you for your help.
	mank you for your neip.
_	1. For substantial manager did consequently the Consequence of the Consequence of
	1. For what purpose did you consult the State Court Model Statistical Dictionary?
	2. Does this dictionary contain terms of particular interest to you? What are they?
	$oldsymbol{\epsilon}$
-	
	3. If the answer to question 2 is yes, were the definitions and reporting instructions useful for your purposes? If they were not, why not?
	were not, why noti

4.			
	If this dictionary were	e to be expanded, what areas would you like to see added (for example, juvenile case manr	ner of
		case processing, court workload)?	
	and partitions of the partition of the p		
		and the control of t The control of the control of	
	Ann Abana was a Abia	distance, sould be improved that we have not been all the	
5.	. Are there ways this	dictionary could be improved that you have not mentioned?	
6.	. In what capacity did	d you use this dictionary?	
	☐ Court employee		
		ustice agency employee — Specify type of agency	
		ployee other than criminal justice — Specify type of agency	
	☐ Researcher	provide other than criminal justice — Specify type of agency	<del></del>
	□ Educator		
	☐ Other — Specify	/	<del></del>
	·		
7.	If you used this dict	ionary as a <i>government</i> employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	. If you used this dict	tionary as a government employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	. If you used this dict	tionary as a government employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.		tionary as a government employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	☐ Federal	tionary as a government employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	☐ Federal	tionary as a government employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County	tionary as a government employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	☐ Federal	tionary as a <i>government</i> employee, please indicate the level of government.	
7.	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal		
7.	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County		
7.	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal		
<b>7.</b>	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal		
<b>7.</b>	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal		
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify	<b>y</b>	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify		
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify	<b>y</b>	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify	<b>y</b>	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify	<b>y</b>	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative	<b>y</b>	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court	tionary as a <i>cour</i> t employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court ☐ General jurisdict	tionary as a <i>court</i> employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court ☐ General jurisdict	tionary as a <i>cour</i> t employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court ☐ General jurisdict ☐ Limited or speci	tionary as a <i>court</i> employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court ☐ General jurisdict	tionary as a <i>court</i> employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court ☐ General jurisdict ☐ Limited or speci	tionary as a <i>court</i> employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	
	☐ Federal ☐ State ☐ County ☐ Municipal ☐ Other — Specify  If you used this dict ☐ Administrative ☐ Appellate court ☐ General jurisdict ☐ Limited or speci	tionary as a <i>court</i> employee, please indicate the type of court or office.	

☐ Justice or judge ☐ Clerk of court ☐ Administrator ☐ Planner ☐ Statistician ☐ Information systems		e position you		
10. Additional comments	,			
<b>.∵</b>				
e .				
				•
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
•				
	•			
•				

Name	Telephone			
		)		
Number and street				
City	State	ZIP Code		

- (Fold here) - -

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Bureau of Justice Statistics Washington, D.C. 20531

PLACE STAMP HERE

Court Statistics Program Manager Bureau of Justice Statistics U.S. Department of Justice Washington, D.C. 20531

(Fold here)

#### **NCJRS REGISTRATION**

The National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS) abstracts documents published in the criminal justice field. Persons who are registered with the Reference Service receive announcements of documents in their stated fields of interest and order forms for free copies of Bureau of Justice Statistics publications. If you are not registered with the Reference Service, and wish to be, please provide your name and mailing address below and check the appropriate box.

Name	Telephone		
		( )	☐ Please send me a NCJRS registratio
Number and street			form.
			☐ Please send me th
City	State	ZiP Code	reports listed below.
	(Fold he	are)	

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Bureau of Justice Statistics Washington, D.C. 20531

PLACE STAMP HERE

User Services Department 2
National Criminal Justice Reference Service
Bureau of Justice Statistics
U.S. Department of Justice
Box 6000
Rockville, Maryland 20850

(Fold here)

If you wish to receive copies of any of the Bureau of Justice Statistics Reports listed on the reverse side, please list them below.			ies of any of the Bureau of Justice Statisti low.			se			

#### **Bureau of Justice Statistics Reports**

Single copies are available at no charge from the National Criminal Justice Reference Service, Box 6000, Rockville, Md. 20850. Multiple copies are for sale by the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402

#### **National Crime Survey:**

Criminal Victimization in the United States (annual):

Summary Findings of 1977-78 Changes in Crime and of Trends Since 1973, NCJ-61368

A Description of Trends from 1973 to 1977, NCJ-59898

1978 (final report), NCJ-66480 1977, NCJ-58725

1976, NCJ-49543

1975, NCJ-44593

1974, NCJ-39467

1973, NCJ-34732

The Cost of Negligence: Losses from Preventable Household Burglaries, NCJ-53527

Intimate Victims: A Study of Violence Among Friends and Relatives, NCJ-62319

Crime and Seasonality, NCJ-64818 **Criminal Victimization of New York State** Residents, 1974-77, NCJ-66481

**Criminal Victimization Surveys in 13** 

American cities (summary report, 1 vol.),

NCJ-18471

Boston, NCJ-34818 Buffalo, NCJ-34820 Ciricinnati, NCJ-34819

Houston, NCJ-34821

Miami, NCJ-34822

Milwaukee, NCJ-34823

Minneapolis, NCJ-34824

New Orleans, NCJ-34825

Oakland, NCJ-34825
Oakland, NCJ-34826
Pittaburgh, NCJ-34827
San Diego, NCJ-34828
San Francisco, NCJ-34829
Washington, D.C., NCJ-34830
Public Attitudes About Crime (13 vols.):

Boston, NCJ-46235 Buffalo, NCJ-46236 Cincinnati, NCJ-46237

Houston, NCJ-46238 Miami, NCJ-46239

Milwaukee, NCJ-46240

Minneapolis, NCJ-46241

New Orleans, NCJ-46242 Oakland, NCJ-46243

Pittsburgh, NCJ-46244

San Diego, NCJ-46245

San Francisco, NCJ-46246 Washington, D.C., NCJ-46247

Criminal Victimization Surveys in Chicago,

Detroit, Los Angeles, New York, and

Philadelphia: A Comparison of 1972 and 1974 Findings, NCJ-36360

Criminal Victimization Surveys in the Nation's Five Largest Cities: National Crime Panel Surveys in Chicago, Detroit, Los Angeles, New York, and Philadelphia, 1972 New Largest Cities: National Crime Panel Surveys in Chicago, Detroit, Los Angeles, New York, and Philadelphia, 1972 New Largest Cities (New York), and Philadelphia, 1972 New Largest Cities (New York), and Philadelphia, 1972 New Largest Cities (New York), and Philadelphia, 1972 New York, and 1972 New York,

1972, NCJ-16909

Criminal Victimization Surveys in Eight American Cities: A Comparison of 1971/72 and 1974/75 Findings—National Crime Surveys in Atlanta, Baltimore, Cleveland, Dallas, Denver, Newark, Portland, and St.

Louis, NCJ-36361 Crimes and Victims: A Report on the Dayton/ San Jose Pilot Survey of Victimization, NCJ-013314

Indicators of Crime and Criminal Justice: Quantitative Studies, NCJ-62349

#### Applications of the National Crime Survey Victimization and Attitude Data: Public Opinion About Crime: The Attitudes

of Victims and Nonvictims in Selected Cities, NCJ-41336

Local Victim Surveys: A Review of the Issues, NCJ-39973

The Police and Public Opinion: An Analysis of Victimization and Attitude Data from 13 American Cities, NCJ-42018

An Introduction to the National Crime Survey, NCJ-43732

Compensating Victims of Violent Crime:
Potential Costs and Coverage of a National Program, NCJ-43387

Crime Against Persons in Urban, Suburban, and Rural Areas: A Comparative Analysis of Victimization Rates, NCJ-53551

Rape Victimization in 26 American Cities. NCJ-55878

Criminal Victimization in Urban Schools, NCJ-56396

#### **National Prisoner Statistics:**

Capital Punishment (annual):

1978, NCJ-59897

1979 advance report, NCJ-67705

Prisoners in State and Federal institutions on December 31:

1978, NCJ-64671

1979 advance report, NCJ-66522

Census of State Correctional Facilities, 1974 advance report, NCJ-25642

Profile of State Prison Inmates: Sociodemographic Findings from the 1974 Survey of Inmates of State Correctional Facilities, NCJ-58257

Census of Prisoners in State Correctional Facilities, 1973, NCJ-34729

Census of Jails and Survey of Jail Inmates, 1978, preliminary report, NCJ-55172

Profile of Inmates of Local Jails: Sociodemographic Findings from the 1978 Survey of Inmates of Local Jails, NCJ-65412

The Nation's Jails: A report on the census of jails from the 1972 Survey of Inmates of Local Jails, NCJ-19067

Survey of Inmates of Local Jails, 1972, advance report, NCJ-13313

#### **Uniform Parole Reports:**

Parole in the United States (annual):

1978, NCJ-58722

1976 and 1977, NCJ-49702 Characteristics of the Parole

Population, 1978, NCJ-66479
A National Survey of Parole-Related

Legislation Enacted During the 1979 Legislative Session, NCJ-64218

Children in Custody: Juvenile Detention and Correctional Facility Census

1977 advance report: Census of Public Juvenile Facilities, NCJ-60967

Census of Private Juvenile Facilities, NCJ-60968

1975 (final report), NCJ-58139

1974, NCJ-57946 1973, NCJ-44777

1971, NCJ-13403

#### Myths and Realities About Crime: A

Nontechnical Presentation of Selected Information from the National Prisoner Statistics Program and the National Crime Survey, NCJ-46249

State and Local Probation and Parole Systems,

State and Local Prosecution and Civil Attorney Systems, NCJ-41334

National Survey of Court Organization: 1977 Supplement to State Judicial Systems,

NCJ-40022 1975 Supplement to State Judicial Systems, NCJ-29433

1971 (full report), NCJ-11427

#### State Court Model Statistical Dictionary,

#### State Court Caseload Statistics:

The State of the Art, NCJ-46934 Annual Report, 1975, NCJ-51885 Annual Report, 1976, NCJ-56599

A Cross-City Comparison of Felony Case Processing, NCJ-55171

Trends in Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System, 1971-77 (annual), NCJ-57463

Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System (annual) 1978 Summary Report, NCJ-66483 1978 final report, NCJ-66482 1977 final report, NCJ-53206

Dictionary of Criminal Justice Data Terminology: Terms and Definitions Proposed for Interstate and National Data Collection and Exchange, NCJ-36747

#### Criminal Justice Agencies in the U.S.:

Summary Report of the National Criminal Justice Agency List, NCJ-65560

Criminal Justice Agencies in Region 1: Conn., Maine, Mass., N.H., R.I., Vt., NCJ-17930

2: N.J., N.Y., NCJ-17931 3: Del., D.C., Md., Pa., Va., W.Va., NCJ-17932

4: Ala., Ga., Fla., Ky., Miss., N.C., S.C., Tenn., NCJ-17933

5: III., Ind., Mich., Minn., Ohio, Wis., NCJ-17934

6: Ark., La., N.Mex., Okla., Tex., NCJ-17935

7: Iowa, Kans., Mo., Nebr., NCJ-17936

8: Colo., Mont., N.Dak., S.Dak., Utah, Wyo., NGJ-17937

9: Ariz., Calif., Hawaii, Nev., NCJ-15151

10: Alaska, Idaho, Oreg., Wash., NCJ-17938

#### **Utilization of Criminal Justice Statistics** Project:

Sourcebook of Criminal Justice Statistics

1979 (annual), NCJ-59679
Public Opinion Regarding Crime, Criminal Justice, and Related Topics, NCJ-17419

New Directions in Processing of Juvenile Offenders: The Denver Model, NCJ-17420 Who Gets Detained? An Empirical Analysis

of the Pre-Adjudicatory Detention of Juveniles in Denver, NCJ-17417 Juvenile Dispositions: Social and Legal

Factors Related to the Processing of Denver Delinquency Cases, NCJ-17418
Offender-Based Transaction Statistics: New

Directions in Data Collection and Reporting, NCJ-29645

Sentencing of California Felony Offenders,

The Judicial Processing of Assault and **Burglary Offenders** in Selected California Counties, NCJ-29644

Pre-Adjudicatory Detention in Three Juvenile Courts, NCJ-34730

**Delinquency Dispositions:** An Empirical Analysis of Processing Decisions in Three

Juvenile Courts, NCJ-34734

The Patterns and Distribution of Assault
Incident Characteristics Among Social
Areas, NCJ-40025

Patterns of Robbery Characteristics and Their

Occurrence Among Social Areas, NCJ-40026 Crime-Specific Analysis:

The Characteristics of Burglary Incidents, NCJ-42093

An Empirical Examination of Burglary Offender Characteristics, NCJ-43131 An Empirical Examination of Burglary Offenders and Offense Characteristics, NCJ-42476

Sources of National Criminal Justice Statistics: An Annotated Bibliography, NCJ-45006

Federal Criminal Sentencing: Perspectives of Analysis and a Design for Research, NCJ-33683

Variations in Federal Criminal Sentences: A Statistical Assessment at the National Level, NCJ-33684

Federal Sentencing Patterns: A Study of Geographical Variations, NCJ-33685 Predicting Sentences in Federal Courts: The Feasibility of a National Sentencing Policy,

NCJ-33686

U.S. Department of Justice Bureau of Justice Statistics

Official, Business Penalty for Private Use \$300 Postage and Fees Paid U.S. Department of Justice Jus 436

SPECIAL FOURTH-CLASS RATE BOOK



Washington, D.C. 20531

# END